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Aspris Holdco Limited
Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022

The Directors present their strategic report of the period from 28 July 2021 to 31 August 2022.

Throughout the document, references to the “Company” refer to Aspiis Holdeo Limited. References to the “Group”
refer to Aspris Holdco Limited and its subsidiaries. All amounts are presented in GBP £m, unless otherwise stated.

Pricipal activity
The principal activity of the company is to act as an investment holding company.

The Group is a leading provider of specialist education and care services to young people in the UK., Educating and
cating for a wide speetrum of specialist education and mental healthcare needs, including autism, learning difficultics,
social, emotional and mental health conditions (SEMU). In addition, the Group provides speciatist education and
mental health services 1o young peaple and adulls respectively across the Middle East. The Group operates via two
primary divisions:

» The UK divisions provide education and residential carc and assessment for children with specialist
emotional and behavioural difficulties or autistic spectium disorders.

+ The Middle East divisions provide education to young people in the UAE, and mental healthcare and
wellbeing services to adults and young people in UAE and KSA.

Business Review
Development of the business

The Company was Incorporated on the 28 July 2021, and on the 31 August 2021 acquived 100% of the sharcholding
of Aspris Children’s Services Limited (“ACSL™) (previousty named Priory Education Services Limited) through the
100% owned subsidiary Aspris Bideo Limited. These financial statements represent the results of the activities of the
Company since incorporation, the aclivities of the Aspris group since the date of acquisition and the subsequent
acquisifions and disposals described below. Prior to the acquisition of ACSL the Group did not have any trading or
operations and so the metrics quoted below as part of the ‘Performance of the Business® seclion are for the twelve
months ending 3 1st August 2022,

On 28 January 2022 the wholly owned ACSL purchased 100% of the shareholding in SC Topco Limited, From this
date the consolidated results and activities of SC Topeo Limited (*Sandcastle Care’) are represented in these financial
statements.

On 31 March 2022 ACSL acquired 100% of the shareholding in Hollyblue Healtheare (Arden) limited, latterly
renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited. From this date the results and activities of this acquired entity are represented in
these financial statements. Please see note 17 to the financial statements for additional information on the above
business combinations completed during the period.

In addition to the Group’s primary focus of providing high quality education and care to all those within its services,
the Group has also been focused on the successfiti completion of the following key developments:

+  Separation from the Priory Group of companies, Whilst the operations of ACSL were largely autonomous
from those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the recipient of ceniral support services provided to it by
the Priory Group. These services continued under a teansitional services arrangement agreed at the time of
the Group’s acquisition of ACSL, This transitional stage included the implementation of Aspris’ own
standalone systems and support infrastructure, the process of which was completed by 1 January 2023, with
all services received under this transitional arrangement ceased to be provided from that date.



Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Business Reyiew (continued)

Development ef the business (continned)

Acquisition and integration of Sandcastle Care into the Aspris Group. Sandcastle Care provides residential
care places for over 100 young people, primarily In the North West of the UK. These services are similar in
natuye to those afready provided by the Group. The integration and incorporation of this business into the
Group has been a focus for members of the management team during the period.

Review of Group strategy and long-term plan, Following the successful separation from Priory Group, the
Group has undertaken a broad review of the key strategic direction and objectives of the business. The
completion of this process provides the overarching framework within which the business is managed and
directed by the Board and senior management.

Continued expaasion of our Middle East operations. Since establishing a presence in the UAE in 2017,
ACSL has steadily grown the provision of services in the region to cater for the education and care needs of
both young people and adults, including geographic expansion into KSA., Whiist the Middle East division
remains small relative to the primary UK operations (please refer 1o note 4 to the financial statements for
the split of revenue for the period ending 31 August 2022), the region represents a central part of the
Group’s development strategy.

Performance of the Business

The key financial and non-financial performance indicators during the period were as follows:

Key KPIs 2022 i
Turnover £179.2m i
Operating profit before Impairment kosses and Exceptional costs £23.1m

Quality 83.2%

Capacity 1,910

QOccupancy 1,660

Occupancy % 86.9%

Annual Growth in Middle East patient appointments 51.1%

Notes:

1. Operating profit measure of £23,1m is equal 1o the Group’s Cperating loss £4.7m s1ated before Exceptional costs of £7.8in, Impairment
tosses of £19 7m and Other losses of £0.3m

2. Qualily, Capacity and Occupancy metrics relate to the UK business only, unless stated

3, Capacity an Occupancy quoted are averages for the period on a non-proforma basis, with dual placements jncluded as a single unit of
capacity and eccupancy




Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Business Review (confinued
Quality of our services

A primary indicator of the Group’s performance is the level of Quality of the services we provide to those in our
care,

Regulatory requirements differ across the Group, though the vast majority of our UK services are regulated by the
Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and Skills (*Ofsted*), and in Scotland and Wales by their
local equivalent. All schools and children’s homes must be licensed, and the relevant regulators award quality
ratings to each service, In Abu Dhabi, the school operated by the Group is regulated by the Abu Dhabi Department
of Education and Knowledge (*ADEK’} but is also subject to British Schoo! Overseas inspections. In addition, a
limited number of our services are also regulated the Care Quality Commission (*CQC*) in England, and, in
Scotland, Wales, Northern Ireland, and the Middle East, by the local equivalent,

Within the UK the Group achieved an average % of facilities rated as Good or above by their respective regulators
of 83.2%. This is above the national benchimark leve] published by Ofsted but is below where the business’
objectives are in this area. The provision of the best quality service is a key priority and the business is focused on
continuous improvement in this area, supported by increased investment in our support functions that directly or
inclirectly support the quality of our services.

Within the Middle Bast, the Group’s specialist education operations in Abu Dhabi (the first dedicated antism school
in Abu Dhabi for Emirali students in parlnership with ADEK) underwent the first major inspection of a dedicated
autism school in the region. The outcome of this inspection was formally announced on 1% November 2022, with the
school achieving an Qutstanding rating across all aveas. This further demonsirates the Group’s established delivery
of exceptional level specialist education services beyond the Growp’s primary UK market.

Results for the peried

The Group delivered high quallty services to meet the needs of a wide spectrum of young people, families, Local
Authorities and communities acioss the UK and Middle East. With an average number of 1,660 young people using
our services in the UK during the period and 180 young pecple in the Middle East. In addition, the volume of outpatient
appointments in our Middle East Wellbeing centres increased by 51.1% vs the equivalent prior peried, diiven partly
by the opening of two new centres in Abu Dhabi and Saudi Arabia.

The results for the year ate set oul in the conselidated Income Stateent on page 26 and the financial position of the
Group as at 31 August 2022 is set out in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position on page 28. Group revenue
for the year was £179.2m and Operating profit before exceplional costs, impairment foss and other losses was £23.1m,
which represents an operating margin of 12.9% of revenue. Key factors of the operating profitability of the busincss
include the number of service users in our facilities, the availability and cost of staffing and the cost of associated non-
wage costs required to support the young people and our operations more generally.

The Group’s nct oss for the period was £27. Im, which was after charging £19.7m impairment to goodwill relating to
the Sandcastle division, and after £7,8m of exceptional costs, these primarily refate to the costs incurred in relation to
the corporate transactions undertaken and outlined above and in note 17. Further details of these exceptional charges
and impairment are given in notes 10 and 15 to the financial statenents.

The Group’s fitanciai position and underiying operating cash generation is positive, with net assets of £92.0m at the
close of the period and net cash flow from operating activities during the period of £34.2m.



Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Business Revicw (coufinued)

Results for the period (cantinued)

The largest component of our cost base is the wages and related oncostis of our staff, which represeats 67% of operating
costs.

Staff are our primary resource and the Group prioritises the wellbeing, retention and recruitment of owr workforce.
This includes increased investment in staff wages, but also in a range of measures designed to increase staff wellbeing
and engagement.

Staff shortages have been a feature of the reporting period, with a small number of our available residential places
being offline due to these constraints. Despite these factors the financial performance of the Group was inline with the
original business plan supporting the acquisition of ACSL.,

Future developments and strategy

Management consider the Group to be in & good position to expand the provision of its services in both the UK and
Middle East, Building on its existing high qualily provision and strong reputation within each region to provide
essential services to a greater number of people in the communities that it serves.

The Group strategy prioritises the improvement of quality and ufilisation across all our existing facilities, in parallel
swith continuing to expand the specialist education aspects of the business. With the planned opening of new education
capacity at existing and newly identified sites, being complemented by the targeled and selective acquisition of
existing specialist education providers,

Following the close of the reporting period, and consistent with this strategy, the Group completed the acquisition of
a specialist education provider in the UK, BHIS Holdings Limited. The acquired husiness, and its wholly owned
subsidiaries, provide specialist education for up fo approximately 100 primary and secondary school aged young
people in the East of England. To support this acquisition, and the Group’s broader growth objectives, the Group
entered into an extension of its available external debt facilities with its exisling lenders, This new growth facility was
agreed and effective from 8 February 2023.

In addition, afier the close of the reporting period the Group completed a reorganisation of its UK operations, This
reorganisation is aimed at improving and strengthening the management structure to increase focus on delivering on
the Group’s objectives for all aspects of our services, including optimising staffing, and thereby improving utilisation
across our portfolio, by increasing (ransparency and management communication through all levels of the business.

In the Middle East, the Group is growing via the maturing of its recently opened Wellbeing Centres and via wider
opportunities to expand the education offering across region. In KSA the Group opened a Welibeing Centre in
Riyadh through iis jeinl venture with a local pariner that was entered into in 2020. The Group continues {o view
current and future local partnerships in the region as a key avenue for growth.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group can be impacted by a range of external factors. The principal factors are the availability and retention of
the appropriate number of trained and qualified staff, the macro-economic environment resulting in increased inflation
and increased interest rates, changes in the UK. government’s policy towards the funding of specialist educatfon and
care, changes in the regulatory regime, conipetitive threats from other providers and the loss of key Individuals, The
following are the most significant risks and uncertainties facing the Group.

Failure to comply with regukation and increascd regulatory costs

All of the Group’s services are subject to a high level of regulation by various regulatory bodies. Laws and
vegulations are evolving within the sector (and may be infroduced in the future) that could impose increased costs on
the Group’s operations, The Group is unable to predict the content of new legislation and/or regulations and their
cffect on its business.

Inspections by regnlators are carried out on both an annownced and unarnounced basis, dependent on the specific
regulatory provisions relating o different care or education services. The failure to comply with relevant regulations,
that therefore leads o the determination of regulatory non-compliance, or the fallure of the Group to cure any defeck
noted in an inspection report could result in the revocation or imposition of conditions on the registration of any
service or a decrease in or cessation of, services provided by the Group at one or more of its facilities.

To mitigate these 1isks, the quality of care is monitored by an experienced team and through the establishment of
robust policies and procedures. The team are independent of the operating divisions and report directiy to the Board.
Homes are regularly audited by the team to ensure compliance with care standards and action plans are drawn up in
appropriate cases. Risks also mitigated by investing in the legal and compliance team, and in recruitment and
training. Where changes in legislation can be predicted, the Group models the impact the changes will have in
advance of the legislation belng implemented,

Ewmployees

The Group’s performance depends on its operational staff at our schools and residential hemes. The managers of our
facilities, and their respective site teams, are essential for the provision of our services. The logs of key individuels
and the inability to recruit people with the right experience and skills from the local community could adversely
impact the Group’s results.

The velevant labour markets for certain of our services have become more challenging over the reporiing period and
may continue to be challenging, or become more 8o, in the future. This may lead to an increase in the number of
staff vacancies across the Group and therefore restrict the proportion of vur capacity that can be fully operational
andfor slow future growth prospects, Whilst the challenges have been less evident in the Education portion of the
business, as compared to the residential aspects of our services, it has nevertheless been a factor across the Group.

To mitigate these issues the Group has implemented a wide range of measures to enhance both our recruitment and
retention of staff. These initiatives are led by dedicated senior management fiom our Human Resources department,
along with our Learning and Development function, and are targeted at improving overall employee welfare and to
ensure owr staff offering, both financial and non-financial, is competitive within the markets in which we operate.

Specifically, regarding staff pay, the Directors take steps to ensure competitive salary levels across the Group and
have sought to increase across salaries across the Group during the period to aid retention and recruitiment, with
specific consideration to the cost-of-living increases on all staff caused by the macro-economic environment.

However, there is a risk that these salary levels are not sufficient to improve the Group®s staff metrics and therefore
further constraints on our services due to staff shorfages may be possible.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Non-Wage supplies and cost inflation

In addition to workforce remuneration, the Group also incurs costs oh a range of supplies, including food, education
supplies, enesgy/utilities and rental expenses The current macro-economic backdrop places increasing pressure on
the availability and cost of certain key supplies.

With energy, and other bulk product supply, challenges across Europe driving higher inflation levels than in
previous years there is increased price pressure on the Group’s cost base. There is a risk that these costs increase
further and, whilst they are a minorily of the Group’s cost base, increases could still be material.

In addition, there is a risk that cerfain supplies will take longer to source and therefore substitute products may need
to be found, there is a risk this could cause disruption to our services and that aiternative supplies may be move
costly than those supplies which they replace.

In addition, certain supplies, such as food, are sourced from a low number of major national suppliers and therefore
there may be a risk that disruption of service at ane supplier, or price changes by those suppliers, eould have an impact
on the Group.

To mitigate these arcas the Group has a dedicated procurement finction focused on optimising our sources, costs of
and security of supply. The Group engages on a regular basis with all our key suppliers to ensure effeciive management
of these risks. In additicn, the Group seeks to agree pricing and security of supply on a forwatd basis where possible
and appropriale, for example on our energy supplies, to increase visibility over cost and reduce supply side risks.
Management of these risks include maintaining relalionships with secondary source supplies to ensure options are
available to mitigate disruptions in supply {tom a particular provider.

Loss of vevenue from contracts with UK local authorities

A substantial proportion of the Group’s UK revenue derives from publicly funded Local Authorities. The Group
expects to continue to rely on the ability and willingness of these bodies to pay for the Group’s services. Whilst
there is an obligation for Local Authorities to fund the provision of such services to young people there is a risk that
cither budget constraints or other financial pressures could cause such publicly funded bodles to allocate less money
to the types of service that the Group provides, or that political change ov poliey changes mean that fewer services
are contracted frem independent sector providers.

In addition, there is a risk that these Local Authorities are not able to meet the increased costs of us viably providing
services al certain facilitics, due {o the above-mentioned cost pressures.

To mitigate these risks the Group regularly assesses services provided to ensure they represent value for meney and
where necessary reposilions services to align with demand. Through the Group’s dedicated Bidding and
Commissioning team, and other members of our senior management team, the Group engages in regular
communication with our Local Authorities customenrs to ensure these is clear and open dialogue with our key
customers.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Principal Risks and Unceyfainties (continued)

IT security and Data Protection

The Group's IT infrastiucture is an integral part of its operating capability. This infrastructure provides connectivity,
hardware and software applications to all of our fucilities and central functions. Furthermore, the Group holds large
volumes of sensitive data, a portion of which resides within our IT environment,

There is a risk that the systems or applications fall or are subject to a security breach that temporarily prevents their
use and therefore impacts our services, In addition, such an cvent may compromise sensitive data held within the
Group relating to its customers, which could expose the Group to further liability due to such a breach.

The Group invests sipnificantly In meeting these potential risks. With a dedicated IT department reasonable for the IT
environment and security, complimented by extemal expert advice and services procured fo enhance key aspects of
Data Protection and Cyber security.

Tmpact from the risks related o the Covid-19 pandemic

The global cutbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 represented a sigoificant source of uncertainty within the wider
macroeconomnic environment, including the sectors in which the Group operates, Distuption was experienced by most
sectors, and the Group’s services were not innmune to these impacts.

Given the naturc of our services the Group continued to operate its full service provision, with all schools and homes
remalning open in the UK, and owr Middle Bast Wellbeing cenires moving successfully to an online appointment
based model, The teams across the Group performed with outstanding professionalism to ensure we continued to
deliver essential education and care to all those that rely on our services.

Whilst there were notable staff absences due to self-isolation, and the resulting operational challenges, the long term
financial impact on the Group was not significant, and with the exception of the longer term constraints that have
impacted the general labour market referenced above, the Group {5 currently not impacted by the pandemic.

The Directors believe any further similar outbreak would be met with a similar sugcessful response, but there is a risk
that a new Covid variant, or other pandemic, may have a greater impact on the Group’s ability to provide ils services.

To mitigate this the Group has clear and robust infection control policies, including contingency planning for staffing
in the event of a further outbreak,

10
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continned)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Financial vislc management

The Group is exposed to financial risks in the form of credit, interest and liquidity risks which arise in the normal
course of business. The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed to are noted below, for further detail on these
financial risks please sec note 27.

Credit risk

Financial instruments which potentially expose the Group to credit risk consist primarily of cash and trade receivables.
Cash is only deposited with major financial institutions that satisfy certain credit eriteria.

Credit risk is not considered to be significant given that over 90% of revenue is derived from publicly funded entitics,
and payment is taken in advance or at lime of treatment for privately funded healthcare services at our Wellbeing
centres,

Intevest rate risk
The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving external credit facilities. All the external debt of the

Group contains a variable element which is linked o the Sterling Overnight Index Average, published by the Bank of
England, Senior loans are repayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facilities are repayable on 31 August 2026.

The Group regularly reviews the options available to it for the hedging of interest rate risk, but currently does not have
4 hedged component to the interest burden on its externat debt. In light of prevailing market conditions, and the high
cost of hedging instruments, the Directors believe the Group has sufficient capacity to address the risk of interest rate
rises.

Liquidity risk

The Group prepares annual and monthly cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated projects.
The Group hes sufficient available facilities and cash flows from profits te fund current commitments. The Group has
access 1o a Revolving Credit Facility that is available to support the Group’s operational liquidily requirements at the
signing of the financial statements the majority of this Revolving Credit Facility was undrawn,

11
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Section 172(1) statcment

The following Section 172 statement, which is required by the Companies Act 2006, describes how the Directors
have had regard to the matters set out in 5172 (1a to 1f) including key decisions and matters that are of strategic
importance to the Group, The Board of Directors, in ling with their duiies under s172 of the Companies Act 2006,
act in a way they consider, in good faith would be most fikely to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of
its members as a whole, and in doing so have regard to a range of matters when making decisions for the long term,

We aim to pursue an open and tratsparent dialogue with our key stakcholders in order to develop a clear
understanding of their needs, asscss their perspectives and monitor their impact on our strategic objectives, As part
of the Board’s decision-making process, the Directors consider the potential impact of decisions on relevant
stakeholders whilst also having regard to a number of broader factors, including the impaet of the Group’s
aperations on the community and cnvironment, responsible business practices and the likely consequences of
decisions in the long term.

Key stakeholders

QOur key stakeholders are our service users (and their families), out workforce, our regulators and our investors and
lenders. Our commissioners, suppliers, and the communities we operate within are also impottant stakcholder groups.
All key Board decisions take into account the impact on the relevant stakeholder groups, as follows:

Service users and their families

The Group provides specialist education, care and mental health services to a wide 1ange of young people in the UK,
and to young people and adults in the Middle East. Those to whom services are provided, and their families, are
fundamental to every aspect of the Group’s operafions and objectives, The Directors monitor the quality of service
provision to ensure the highest levels of care ave provided by a kighly skilled and well equipped workforce. In addition,
the Directors monifor the condition and appropriateness of the environment across the Group’s facilities to ensure the
physiecal environment In which services are provided are appropriately configured and maintained to the high standards
required for leading education and care provision, Feedback is received directly through our operational feams, who
interact directly with service users and their families, and through muliiple channels of communication to senior
management to ensure issues can bo raised and escalated outside of any specific care team or facility. The directors
are committed fo open communication and trensparency regarding all aspects of our service detivery, and ensuring
the Group’s operations deliver service provision to meet the specific needs of each individual setvice user,

Workforce

Our workforee is key to providing safe and effective care to those whom we support. The Group employs a wide array
of specialist education and care professionals and engagement with those employees is paramount. The Directors
monitor the results of staff surveys, both regutar and ad hoc, together with the Group’s system of employee forums
which occur at local, regional and national level, meaning the Board is able to discuss human resourcing matters with
the interests of its workforce at heart. An exanple of actions taken in response to the feedback generated through these
channels is the articulation of tailored career pathways available to all Group employees. Annual salaiy reviews are
undertaken with reference 10 the importance of colleague retention, changes In the National Living Wage, and
commercial factors. The Directors are committed to communicating the results of any wage reviews in a transparent
manner, Further information in respect of employees is set out on the Divectors’ report.

Investors

Our shareholders register consists of a majority shareholders, Standbyco 35 B.V. who are wholly owned by Waterland
Private Equity Investments B.V,, and a number of minority shareholders which includes our largest single fandiord
(Medical Properties Trust) and various members of the Group®s management team. The Board engages regularty with
its major sharehalders in order to, inter alia, develop long-term and shott-term business strategy, decide upon resource
allocation and consider key business risks. This includes regular reporting to both Waterland Private Equity and
Medical Properties Trust to ensure clear alignment and transparency over Group performance and direction.

12
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Section [72(1) statement (continued)

Regulators

We are subject to a igh degree of regulation, particularly in relation to the registration and ongoing inspection of cur
services. The “business review” seclion above outline the key regulatory bodies, Reosulis of inspections and more
general reports made by the regulators are discussed by the Board where appropriate, and cngoing dialogue is
mgintained in order 1o respond with agility to cmerging arcas of focus. Some of our regulators also have responsibility
for monitoring the ongoing financial viability of our business — senior management meet with the regulators
periodically to engage in this process. StafT bonuses schemes at all levels of the organisation are at least partly linked
to the outcomes of internal and external quality metries,

Customers

The majority of our revenue is generated from the pravision of services to Local Authorities and other public bodies,
with a minority of revenues generated from private funding. In all cases is important that we evolve our service
provision to satisfy local demand {the needs of which can change over time), meet changing education and care criteria
and provide such services at the right time and place at an appropriate cost. Communication with customers is ongoing
both locally and nationally, and the Board will consider the requirements of customers when allocating resources for
new or amended service offerings, and agreeing a general approach to funding.

Suppliers

We aim lo treat our suppliers fairly and work in partnership with them as they provide essential goods and services to
the Group. Tt is our policy to adhere to agreed credit terms. We maintain strong supplier relationships across our supply
chains, led by the Group’s dedicated procurernent function, Our key suppliers also includes our contracted workforee,
agency workers and related staffing agencies in the teaching and cate professions, who play an essential role in
delivering quality services, For all supplics we engage in transparent and robust tendering and onboarding processes
to deliver fair and sustainable outcomes for suppliers and for the Group.

Communities

The Group operates nationally and many of our facilities are embedded within the wider community, It is therefore
important that the impact of our operations on the communities we operate in are laken into consideration. We are
also cognisant of the need to consider the overall environment when contracting with suppliers, or considering any
significan! development projects, for example.

Principal decisions

The Group defines principal decisions as those that are material, or of strategic importance to the Group, and also
those that have a significant impact on any of our key stakeholder groups, By way of exatnple, a selection of principal
decisions taken by the Board during the year is set out below, highlighting the primary stakeholder groups affected
and some of the considerations taken into account in reaching those principal decisions.

Appraval of the 2022/23 budget

The Board approved, priot to the start of the new financial and acadentic year, the final budget for the twelve months
ending 31st August 2023. The budget includes forecasts for each existing facilily as well as central functions in order
to arrive at an agpregated business plan. The key stakeholder groups affected are our investors and our workforce.
Some of the key considerations taken into account included the balance of delivering ever greater quality of services,
improved staff retention and growth of our services to service a greater number of people.

13
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Section 172(1) stafement (continued)

Facility refurhishments, expansions and service changes

As part of the 2022/23 budgel, and looking ahead into the medium term, the Board approved a number of significant
capital expenditure projects in order Yo refurbish and/or expand existing facilities, retwol locations 10 better reflect
demand for services and consider sclective additional property acquisitions to expand cetlain service lines. The key
stakeholder groups affecled are our investors, our commissioners and current and fature service users, Some of the
key considerations taken into account included the likely veturn on investinent of such projects, the ability of a project
to meet the requirements of commissioners in providing a particular service, and our ability to safely and effectively
operate the service.

Anti-corruption arnd anti-bribery malfers

The Group has an established and Robust Anti-Bribery and Corruption processes and controls in place, These are
supported by an internal audit function that has the mandate to perform announced and unannounced inspections and
investigation inle any transactions oceurring at a local, regional or group level.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Torringtol
Directar Divector

The Forge,

43 Chutch Street West,
Woking,

GU21 6HT

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors® Report for the period ended 31 August 2022

The Directors present their report and the consolidated financial statements for the period from 28 July 2021 to 31
August 2022,

Lnvotporation
The Compaty was incorporated in England and Wales and commenced trading on 28 July 2021,

The consolidated financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with Internaiional financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS™) and the IFRS Interpretations Committee (“IFRS IC”) interpretations as adopled by the UK.

This repor! should be read in conjunction with the stralegic report from page 4. The Group has chosen in accordance
with Section 414C (2) of the Companies Act 2006 Lo set out in the strategic repost the following which the Directors
believe to be of strategic importance:

*  Business review;

»  Future development and slrategy;

s Principal risk and uncertainties; and
*  Financial risk management.

Directors pf the Group

‘The Directors, who held office during the period, were as follows:
Oliver J Bevan (appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan Hallworth (appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan D Jervis (Appointed 31 August 2021)

Trevor M Torrington (Appoinied 31 August 2021)

Dividends

The Board has not recotmmended 2 dividend for the reporting period and has no current plan to do se,




Aspris Holdco Limited

Dirvectors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Statement of Divectors' Responsibilitics

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for prepaving the Annual Repoit and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepave the financial statements in accordance with UK adopted Internationa! Financial
Reporting Standards (IFR Ss), Under company law the Directors must net approve the financial siatements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for that period, In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to;

«  select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

+ make judgenients and accounting estimates that are reesonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK adopted Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate (o presume that the
comparty will continue in business.

The Directors ave responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group’s and the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and the company and enabie them (o ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Acl
2006. They are also respousible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Corporate governance

‘The Group has vobust Governance and oversight of all aspects of the business;

* The Board meet at least six times per annum and are responsible for the overall management and direction
of all aspects of the Group.

#»  TheExecutive Committee, which is Chaired by the Chief Executive Officer and includes senior management
from acress all aspects of the business, meets monthly and are the primary exccutive team for the execution
and governance of the day o day running of the Group,

¢ Quality and Compliance committee, which is Chaired by the Direclor of Governance and includes senior
operational and function leads directly related to education and care quality, meets monthly and is the senior
oversight of operational quality and risk.

+  Performance and Commercial Review committee, which is Chaired jointly by the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer, meets monthly and is the senior oversight of the financiat and commercial
performance of the business.

+ Independent inspections, in line with the relevant legislation (regulation 44 of The Children’s Homes
{England} Regulations 2015)) the Group has 2 rolling programme of independent inspeetions that report into
the Executive committee and above quality committee. These provide independent oversight over the quality
delivery of appropiiate and complient education and care services,
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Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Going concern

The Board reviews forceasts of the Group’s projected trading and associated liquidity requirements based on a range
ol scenarios lo ensure it has sufficient cash to meet ils operational and financial needs. These forecasts are underpinned
by detailed and embedded forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the near term
and long-term liquidity requirements of the Group, to inforin the Directors decision making on all key financial
matters. The Directors consider both short lerm and long-term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling threc-
month daily liquidity forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasting processes, and longer term 3
year long range plans for the Group. Each of these prajects the liquidity and covenant keadroom for the Group.

The Group made a loss before tax of £27.4m for the period ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the current period is
driven by the non-cash impairment of goodwill (see note 15) of £19.7m and exceptional costs of £7.8m, excluding
these items the Group made a loss of £0.1m: and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group is foreeast to make an
operating profit during the going concern period. The Group generates sufficient cash to cover its Habilities and surplus
balances are held as cash reserves to invest in the Group and support the business in future periods, A1 31 August 2022
the Group had debt of £165.0m due to its external lenders and finance lease liabilities of £160.5m. No loans were due
to our shareholders.

These considerations include the availability of comritted, but undrawn, debt facilities that arc available to the Group
to support general corporate and working capital purposes. As af 31° August 2022 these available but undrawn
facilities were £19.7m

The Direetors assessment of going concern considers three primary areas:
1. Key fundamental business factors

The Group’s primary business, and majority of the Group’s revenues and cashflows, is generated via the provision
of services with specific characteristics that are key in considering downside risk:

Provision of essential services

The group provides essential education and care services to meet the needs of a wide spectrum of young people in
our society. The demand for these services has increased over the last decade and continues to do so across the
country. Certain service areas are slated as a Governmental priority, hence funding is ringfenced for many of the
areas the Group provides.

Diversified payor base with low credit risk across the significant mafority of the Group

The majority of the Group’s revenues and cashfiows are generated from customers that are publicly funded. This
Payor includes over 180 Local Authority customers across England, Wales and Scotland. In the majority of case
each LA services and fees are provided on bespoke commercial terms and paid for separately by each customer,
significantly reducing the customer concentration risk.

Established position as a trusted provider

The Group is one of the leading providers of such services in the UK. The Group holds long standing relationships,
often held at both operational and management levels, with its individual customers. The Group has consistently
delivered above national benchmarks for quality service proviston and conlinues to place, as a priority, the
provision of the highest quality care to meet the needs of everyone it serves.

Strength, depth and experience of the Group s management tean and nfrastructure

Over many years the Group has developed, and invested in, the strength and experience of its workforce and
manggement team, These factors enable the nationwide provision of our services to be managed within a rigorous
risk management framework, to respond to risks as they arise.
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Directors® Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Going concern (continued)

Versatility of skills to meet demand changes

The skills embedded in our workforce, and the nature of many of our facilities, are such that we can be
responsive to changes in the needs and demands of the people we care for, their funders and regulators. This
agility reduces the time taken to adapt the Group to best address its core markets.

Cash flow visibility

The majority of young people in the UK that we care for remain within our services for more than a year, and the
payment value and timing for the related services are lavgely defined at the outset of each placement. These
factors provide a base for good visibility over core trading performance and the working capital requirements of
the business. Thereby leading to good levels of cash flow visibility over the near to medium term.

2. Assessment of the principal risks and Impact of a severe but plausible downside scenario

In assessing the potential impact of a range of risk factors on the business the Directors have considered the
[ikely impact on the Group of a range of risks specific to the relevant business sector, as well as the compound
tmpact of risk factors in the broader macro environment that have evolved sinee the balance sheet date.

In particular, a severe but plausible downside scenario is considered by the Directors in order to assess the likely
impact of multiple different adverse factors impacting the Group simultaneously, giving rise to a material
adverse impact on the Group'*s profitability and liquidity during the going coneern period. Further details can be
found in note 3 of the financial statements

3. Consideration of the contralialle action that the Directors can tale to mitigate a severe but plausible
downside scenario

In response to downside risks the Group has a range of actions, within its contral, that it could deploy to mitigate
the impact. These include but are not limited to:

s  Reduction in non-essential capital expenditure, including the capital expenditure on future growth projects

+  Adapting or paunsing of services where no demand exists to reduce or halt losses at a particular facility and
better deploy resources

*  Reduction in certain areas of discretionary spend that would not have any short to medium term adverse
impact on the Group

In aggregate the inclusion of mitigation actions materially increases the level of liquidity and covenant headroom
further, versus the unmitigated scenario

Having considered all of the above factors the Directors have concluded there is no material uncertainty on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going cancern for the period from the date of the appraval of these financial
staternents to 31 August 2024,



Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Enpagement with employees

The Directors recognise that the continued position cf the Group in the specialist education, care and behavioural care
industry depends on the quality and motivation of its emiployees. Well trained, etgaged and quality employees are
crycial for the Group fo ensure that service users receive the best quality care. The key quality performance indicators
the Gieup uscs to mensure engagement and training are: the employee oplnion sorvey, employee sickness levels and
conypliance with the Group e-learning programme. The Group hes low levels of sickness and high levels of compliance
with training programmes. Whilst moniloring these performance indicators, the Group continues to review its
remuneration sysiem to ensure it is fair, transparent, flexible and provides individual recognition. Employees have a
personal development plan that is monitored, assessed and modified during the annual appraisal process.

The Group recognises that good and effective employee communications are particufatly important to retaining and
metivating employces, and throughout the business it is the Dircctors” policy to promote the understanding by all
employees of the Group’s business aims, purpose, performance and individual opportunities for personat and career
development. This is achieved through internal publications, presentations on performance and a variety of other
approaches appropriate for a particular focation. Employees are consulted on issues through our Active Colleague
Engagement (‘ACE”) forunis. [n all these areas, the Group continues to further invest in resource and IT solutions in
order to deliver a positive experience for all our colleagues.

The Directors believe thal it is important to recruit and retain capable and caring staff regardless of their gender,
marital status, race or religion. It is the Group’s policy to give full and fair consideration to applications for
employment from peopie who are disabied, (o continue wherever possible the employment of and to amrange
appropriate iraining for, employees who become disabled and to provide equal opportunities for the career
development, training and pramotion of disabled employees.

Charitable Donations

During the period the Group made charitable donation of £50,000. Individual donations were as follows:

Charity £

UNICEF - Ukratne appeal 50,000
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Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined energy and carben reporting

In April 2019, the Department for Business, Bnergy and Industriaf Strategy introduced a new reporting regulation
entitled the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting Framework (“SECR™), replacing various other reporting
requirements. Organisations subject to SECR are required {o include information relating to their energy usage and

carbon emissions.

The energy vsed and emissions the period ended 31 August 2022 are as follows:

Emission type Total Calculated

Volinne Emissions

(lkWh} (Tonnes of

. CO%)

Scope 1 {direct) 13,814,587 2,954.9

Scope 2 (indivect) ‘ 5,020,739 709
Scape 3 (indirect) _ 26,798 26.8

Total 18,862,124 3,952.6

Scope | Emissions (divect) are Emissions from activities owned or controlled by the Group, that release emissions
into the atmosphere, scope [ emissions for Aspris Group include amongst other, combustion in owned boilers and

vehicles.

Scope 1 Emissions (direct) for the period are as follows:

Eunergy type Defirition Total Calenlated

Yolume Emissions

{lKWh) {Tonnes of

CQ%)

Gas Emissions from combustion of gas 0,407,987 1,169.7

Other Fuels Fmissions from combustion of fuels for stationary 7,153,714 1,532.3

mactiinety and engines

Transport Emissions from combustion of fizels for transport 252,886 252.9
purposes B o

Totat 13,814,587 2,954.9

Scope 2 Emissions {indirect) are emissions released into the atmosphere associated with the Groups consumption of
purchased electricity, heat, and cooling, These ave indirect emissions that are a consequence of the Group’s

activities, but which oceur at sources that the Group does not own or control,
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Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (continued)

Scape 2 BEmissions (indirecl} for the period are as follows:

Encrgy type Definition Total Calculated
Volime Eaissions

{k¥Wh}) {Tonnes of

CQ%)

Electricity Emissions from purchased electricity 5,020,739 970.9
Total 5,020,739 970.9

Scope 3 Emissions (indirect) are emissions that are a consequence of the actions of the Group, which oceur at source
which are not classified as scope 2 emissions. Examples of Scepe 3 emissions are business travel by means not
owned or controlled by the Group.

Scope 3 Emissions (indirect) for the period are as follows:

Enecrgy type Definition Total Calculated
Yolume Emissions
(kWh) (Tonnes of
CQ%)
Employee.owned cars  Emissions frem business travel in rental cars or 26,798 25.8

employce-owned vehicles where the company is
responstbie for purchasing fuel {mandatory}

Total 26,798 26.8

Intensity Ratio

The Group menitors an Intensity ratio in the form of a comparison of emissions to turnovet:

Infensity measure Turnover Intensity

£m Ratijo!
Tonnes CO% per total £m turnover 179.2 22.06
Total 179.2 22.06

' {CO%/Turnover £
Quantification and reporting methodology

The Group has taken guidance from the UK Government Enviroamental Repotling Guidelines (March 2019}, the
GHG Reporting Protoce] - Corporate Standard, and from the UK Government GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting document for calculating carbon emissions. Energy usage information (gas and electricity) has
been obtained directly from our energy suppliers and hati-howly (HH) data, where applicable, for the HH supplies.
For supplies where there were not complete periods encrgy usage availabie, flat profile estimation techniques were
used to complete the periods consumption. Transport mileage data was obtained from expense claims submitted by
the Group’s cars and grey fleet. CO% emissions were calcutated using the appropriate emission faclors 2022 from
the UK Government GHG conversion information,
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Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined energy and caybon reporting (continued)

Energy efficient action

In the past yeat the Group has undertaken various energy cfficiency works across the estate, including the upgrading
of AC systems, boilers and insulation. The Group have, at a number of sites, commenced conversion of Qil heating
systems to more efficient LPG solutions. These focussed works are ongoing alongside general refurbishments
undertaken including LED lighting and general efficiencies,

The Group will continue our efforts through participation in Phase 3 of ESOS (Energy Saving Opportustitics Scheme)
to assist in the targeting and reduction of its carbon footprint through continued structured investment in encrgy
efficiency programmes.

Ethical trading

The Group endeavours fo purchase goods and services with the least environmental impact. Qur efforts for waste
diversion from landfill, recycling, collection, and segregation have meant that the Group have diverted 99% of trade
waste away from landfill, Aspris also recycled 35% of all trade waste generated, and we remain commitied to
increasing this percentage of recycling year on year, with a target of 50% by the end of 2023.

We contintie to be supported in our efforts through the collection of recyclable materials, the collection and
conversion of cur waste cooking 0il to diesel, and other infiiatives.

Disclosure of information fo the auditor

Each Director has taken steps that they ought 1o have taken as a dircetor in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor is aware of that information. The Directors
confirm that there is no relevant information that they know of and of which they know the auditor is unaware.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Torringtpn
Director

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking.

GuU21 6HT

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
Opinion on the financial statements
{1 our opinion:

* fhe financial slatements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s
affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of the Group’s loss for the period then ended;

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international
accounting standards;

s the Parenl Company financial statemenis heve been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

¢ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of Aspris Holdco Limited (“the Parent Company ™) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the period ended 31 August 2022 swhich comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows, Staterment of Cash Flows and noies to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies, The financial reporting framework thal has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK
adopted international accounting standards, and as regards the Parent Company financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements scction of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Independence

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the cthical requirements that are relevant
to our audil of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Couclusions relating to going concern

in auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting
it the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncettainiies relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or Parent Cempany's ability to
continue as a going concern for a peried of at least twelve months from when the financlal statements are authorised
for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect 1o going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Aspris Holdco Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OFASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
{CONTINUED)
Other information
The Directors are responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual Report, other than the financia!l statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the exten otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
Gurresponsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appeats
to be materially misstated. 1f we identify such material inconsistencies or apparcnt material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselives, If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materizl misstatement of this other jnformation, we
are required to report that fact,
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Ir cur opinion, based on the work underteken in the course of the audit:

¢ the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the
firancial statements are prepared is consisient with the financial statements; and

+ the Strategic report and the Directors” report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its environment obtained
ir the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic report or the Directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion;:

s adequate accounting records have not been kepl by the Patent Company, or relurns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the Parent Company financial stalements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

* cortain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and expianations we require for our audit.
Responsibilities of Directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal

control as the Directors determine is necessary o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material migstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR?S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINULED)

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors ate responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
coneern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial siatements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and (o issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is & high evel of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatenients can arise from freud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in ihe aggrepate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Extent 1o which the audit was capable of detecting irvegularities, including frand

Iyreguiarilics, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, lo detect malerial misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent (o which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, inciuding fraud is detailed below:

We have identified and assessed the potential risks related to irregularities, including fraud, by considering the
foHowing:

< the nature of the industry, including the design of the Group’s remuneration policies;

o enquiries of mapagement regarding; compliance with laws and regulations; the detection and
response (o the risk of fraud and any knowledge of actual, suspected cr alleged fraud; and the
controls in place to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations.

o obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework in which the Group operates,
including employment law, and Health apd Safety requirements.

o performing procedures to verify the existence of vevemues, and consider the risks around the
fraudutent recognition of amounts.

We have responded to risks identified by performing procedures including the following:
o enquiry of management concerning actual and patential litigation and claims;

o reviewing the financial statement disclosures and festing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with relevant faws and regulations;

o performing analytical procedures to identify any unusuzl or unexpected relationships which may
indicate risks of misstatement due to fraud; and

o reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance identify any instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations,

We have also considered the risk of fraud through management override of controls by:

o sample testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other sdjustments; assessing whether the
judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating
the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course
of business;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
{CONTINUED)

o discussing among the engagement teamt how and where fraud might oceur in the financial statements
and any potential indicators of fraud. As part of this discussion, we considered potential for fraud
in revenue recognition, specifically in relation Lo revenuc existence, as well as the potential for
management override of centrols specifically in relation to the posting of jownal ediustments and
the inappropriate use of estimates.

o in addressing the risk for fraud in revenue recognition, testing the appropriatencss of the revenue
recognition policies and the application of these palicics and performing specific procedures aver
the existence and cut-off of revenue; and

o diseussing with management and those charged with governance whether they are aware of any
frauds, or non-compliance with {aws and regulations, during the period.

Our audli procedures were designed fo respond fo tisks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misiepresentations or
through collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures pevformed and the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations Is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less
likely we are to become aware of i,

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
https:/ivwwy. fro.org.uk/avditorsresponsibilities. This deseription forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our repaort

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s
meribers those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
exient permitted by law, sve do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the
Parent Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions swe have formed.

DocuSigned by:

Pad, ﬁ&m‘@m

E10CCOCF40A94CC.

Pau! Etherington BSc FCA CF {Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
Reading, UK

22 March 2023

BDO LLP is a limited lability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Consolidated Income statement for the period ended 31 August 2022

Note 2022
£
Revenue 4 179.2
Operating costs {156.1)
Exceptional items 10 (7.8)
Impairment loss 15 (197
Other losses 8 (0.3)
Operationg loss _—( &?}’1—
Net finance costs 9 2.7
Loss before taxation 274
Income tax 11 03
Loss attributable to the owners of the Group W
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The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements,




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period to

31 August 2022
|
2022
£m
Loss for the period 27.1)
‘Total conprehensive income for the period (27.1)
28

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial staternents,



Aspris Holdco Limited
Registration Number: 13534635

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Note 2022
£m
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 158.1
Right of use assets 13 156.4
Intangible assets 14 1434
457.9
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 18 24.5
Cash and cash equivalent 19 18.1
42.6
Total assets 500.5
Current liabilities
Lease liabilities 13 (5.1)
Trade and other payables 24 (21.5)
{ncome fax liability (0.9}
Deferred income 20 . (28.8)
(56.3)
Net current liabilities (13.7)
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 13 (155.4)
Loans and borrowings 22 (159.6)
Provisions 23 (1.0y
Deferred tax liabilities 26 __{36.2)
(352.2)
Net assets 22,0
Share capital 21 84.6
Share premium 345
Accumulated losses (27.1)
Total equity 32.0

Approved by the Board and signed cn its behalf by:

Director

21 March 2023
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The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.




Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended

August 2022
Share capital Share Retained Total equity
Premium Earnings
Loss for the period 27.1) (27.1)
Total comprehensive income {27.1) (27.1)
New share capital subseribed 84.6 34,5 - - _ 1194
At 31 August 2022 84,6 345 ~27.0) 92.0
30

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements,



Aspris Holdco Limited
Registration Number: 13534635

Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Note 2022
£m
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 16 119.1
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 18 0.2
Cash and cash equivalent 19 0.7
_09
Total assets 120.0
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 24 (0.9)
Net current assets/(liabilities) -
Net assets —1"131—
Share capital 21 8.6
Share premium 34,5
Tetal equity 119.1

The Company has 1aken advantage of the exemption conferred by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from
presenting its own profit and loss account, The Company’s loss for the year was £1%,000.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Torringlo
Director Director

21 March 2023
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The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial slatements.




Aspris Holdco Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Fquity for the Period ended August 2022

The notes on pages 34 to 73 farm an integral part of these financial statements.

Share eapital Share Retained  Total equity
Premium Larnings
Loss for the period . - -
Total comprehensive income - -
New share capital subscribed 84.6 34.5 - 119.1
_At 31 August 2022 84.6 34.5 - 119.1
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Period ended 31 August 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the period

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Pepreciation on right of use asscts

Impairment of goodwiit

Loss on disposs! of property plant and equipment
Finance income

Finance costs

Share of loss of equity accounted invesices
Income 1ax

Worlting capital adjustments
Increase in lrade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in provisions

Decrease in deferred income

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Net cash flow from opevating activities

Cash flows from invesfing activities

Interest received

Acquisitions of property plant and cquiprnent
Proceeds from sale of property piant and equipment
Advances of loans to joint ventures

Acquisition of subsidiaries - net of cash acquired

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Proceeds from issne of ordinary shares

Proceeds from external borrowing draw downs
Repayment of external borrowing

Repayment of {oans advanced from former parent
Principal paid on lease liabilities

Interest paid on lease liabilities

Net increase in, and closing cash and cash equivalents

Note

—
AN ES W O

17
13
13

19

2022
£m

(27.1)

13.7
8.5
19.7
0.3
0.1
22.8
0.5
(0.3)
38.0

(6.4
4.1
0.2

(0.5

358

(16)_
34.2

ot

(12.1)

1.0

(1.1

(12371
(135.8)

1.3
119.1
158.6

(41.3)

{90.1)

(4.8)

(10.5)

119.7

18.1
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

1. General information

The company is a private company limited by share capital, incorporated in England and ‘Wales and domiciled in
United Kingdom, registration number 13534635, Aspris Holdco Limited Group includes the Aspris Chikdren®s
Services Abu Dhabi Branch.

These financial statemenls were authorised for issue by the Board en 17 March 2023
2, Accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The Group finencial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and its interpretations adopted by the UK ("UK adopted FFRSs"),

Summary of significant accounting policies and key estimates

‘The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below, These
policies have been consistently applied, unless othervise stated,

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial siatements are prepaved in accordance with UK adopted international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the companies act 2006 as applicable 1o companies using IFRS.
The Company has elected to prepare its parent Company financial statements in accordance with UK generally
accepted accounting principles (UK GAAP), including FRS 101

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost accounting rules.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and
elected not to present its own Statement of Comprehensive [ncome in these financial statements.

Guing coneern

The Board reviows forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements based on a range of scenarios to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operational and financlal needs. These forecasts are underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the near term and long-term liquidity
requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors’ decision making on all key financial matters. The Divectors
congider both short term and long-term forecasts for the business, ranging from 1olling three-month daily liquidity
forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasting processes, and [onger term 3 year long range plans
for the Group. Each of these projects the liquidily and covenant headecom for the Group.

The Group made & loss before tax of £27.4m for the perjod ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the current period
refleets the non-cash impairment of goodwill (see note 15) of £19.7m and exceptional of £7.8m, excluding these
items the group made a loss of £0.1m and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group is forecast to make an operating
profit during the going concern period. The Group generates sufficient cash to cover its liabilities and surplus
balances are held as cash reserves to invest in the Group and support the business in future periods. At 31 August
2022 the Group had debt of £165.0m due to its external lenders and finance lease liabilities of £160,5m. No loans
were due to our sharcholders.

As part of their considerations the Directors revlew a range of different scenarios, including a severe but plausible
downside scenario to assess the impact on both the Hquidity and covenant headroom of the Group, see note 3,
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(econtinued)

Basls of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings
drawn up to 31 August 2022,

A subsidiary is an enlity controlled by the Company. Control is achieved where the Company has the powver to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities,

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the income slatement from the
effective date of acquisition ar up to the sffective date of disposal, as appropriate, Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiarics to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by the
Group.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for business combinations that result in the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of a business combinalion is measured as the fair value of the sssets given,
equity instruments issued and liabililies incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs diveotly atiributable
to the business combination. Identifiable assets acquired and {iabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially al their fair values at the acquisilion date. Any excess of the cost of the
business combination over the acquirer’s interest in the nel fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent Habilities recognised is recorded as goodwill.

[nter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions belween the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are related parties, ere eliminated in full.

Intra-group losses are also eliminated bul may indicate an Impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated
financial stalements,

Changes in accounting policy
The following amendments are effective for the period beginning 28 July 2021:
*  Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

None of the standards, interpretations and amendments effective for the first time from 28 July 2021 have had g
material effect on the financial statements,

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments are not yet effect:

Amendment to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilitics as Current or Non-current
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a business”
1AS 16: PPE: Proceeds before intended use
[AS 37: Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract
Annual improvement cycle to IFRS (2018-2020 Cycle}
o IFRS I: Subsidiary as a first time adopler
o IFRS9: fees in the * 10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities
o IFRS 16: Lease incentives amended example
+ [AS 8: Definition of accounling estimates
e [AS 1: Disclosure initiative —accounting policies
»  Amendments to FAS 12 *Deferred tax relating 10 assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction”

Noue of tlie standards, interpretations and amendments which are effective for periods beginning after 28 July 2021
and which have not been adopted early, arc expected {o have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Asptis Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Kevenue Recoguition
Recognition

Revenue (s recognised based upon the number of people per day to which we have provided a service. These volume
metrics are recorded and combined with the applicable fee vate per person per service, (o derive the total revenue to
be recognised. There is limited judgemental input this process

Revenue is recognised as performance obligations are satistied as control of services is transferred to the customer,

The Group has determined that most of its performance obligations are satisfied over time as the client

simultaneously received and consumes the benefits provided by the Group as the education or care services are

rendered. In the circumstances, revenue is recognised at the amount which the Group has the right to invoice, where

that amount corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s performance completed to date. ‘

The principles in IFRS are applicd to revenue recoghition criteria using the following 5 step modei:

L. Identify the contracts with the customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the tansaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
5. Recognise revenue when or as {he entity satisfies its purformance obligations

Fee arranigemeits

Below are details of fee arrangements and how these are measured and recognised, for revenue from the provision of
services:

Aspris delivers special education and care services to its service users in line with contractual agreements, which
clearly state the nature of the services to be provided over what time period. The main performance obligations in
contracts consist of delivery of services to service users. For all contracts the stage of completion and delivery of
performance obligations are measured at the balance sheet daic by reference to services delivered to service users at
that date.

Transaction price

To caleulate the transaction price of contracts rates are applied daily or by specific service provided to service nsers
as detailed in contractual agreements.
Paymenf ferms

Payment terms range from payment in advance of services delivered to within a renge of specified days of receipt of
service or inveice, dependant on the specific clrcumstances and needs of the service users.

Tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except that a change
attributable to an item of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income is also recognised direotly in
other comprehensive income.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equiprment is stated in the statement of financial position at cost, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes directly attribuiable incremental costs incurred in their
acquisition and installation,

Depreciation

Dxepreciation is charged so as (0 write off the cost of essets, other than land and properties under construction over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Assef class - Years depreciated over

Frechold buildings 50 years

Leasehold buildings The lease term

Fixtures and fittings 3 to 16 years

Molor vehicles The short of the lease term or 4 vears

Iutangible assets

Goodwill arising on the acquisitlon of an entity represenis the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
inferest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, Jiabilities and contingent liabilities of the enlity recognised at
the date of acquisition. Goodsvill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is held in the currency of the acquired entity and revalued to the
closing rate at each repotting period date.

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation but is tested for impainnent on at least an annual basis. The impairment test
compares the recoverable value of a cash generating unit (*CGU”), the value in use of that CGU and the carrying
value of the intangible asset in accordance with IAS36, This assessment factors in the latest developments within
each CGU, including amongst other factors, current trading, capacity and staffing constraints to assess an estimation
of the future cashflows and the determination of a discount rate in order Lo calculate the presenl value of those cash
flows.

Negative goodwili arising on an acquisition is recognised directly in tite income statement. On disposal of a
subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in (he determination of the
profit or loss recognised in the income statement on disposal.

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown at historical cost.

Trademarks, licences (including software) and customer-related intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)

Amortisation

Amortisation is provided on intangible assets so as to write off the cost, less any estimated residual value, over their
expected useiul cconomic fife as follows:

Asset class Years amortised over
Customer contracts G 1o 17 years

The amortisation peiiods are based on expected customer churn rates and, where velevant, the length of fixed-term
customer contracts
Valuation of investments

Investments in subsidiaries held by the company arc nieasured at cost less any accumulated impairment in the
company’s staternent of finaneial position.

Cash and cash cquivalerits

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets, If not, they are presented as non-gurrent assels.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment, A provision for the impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect ali amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). 1T not, they are presented as non-current liabilities,

Trade payables are recognised initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

38



Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Borrowings

All borrowings are initiatly recorded al the fair value which is often the amount received, net of fransaction costs.
Borrowings are subsequently carried al amortised cost, with the difference between the proceeds, net of transaciion
costs, and the amount due on redemption being recognised us & charge to the income statement over the period of the
relevant borrowing,

Interest expense is recognised on the basis of the ¢ffective interest method and [s included in finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for al least 12 months after the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it (s probable that taxable profits will
he available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition {other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are ot recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differcnces associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to centrol the reversal of the temporary
difterence and it {s probable that the temporary difference will nof reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assels arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interesis are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits againsi which ta ytilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are cxpecied to reverse in the foresceable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asseis is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extont
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all o part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax liabifities and assets are measured at the tax rates that arc expected to apply in the period in which the
[iability is setiled or the assct realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The mezsurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax conseguences that would follow from the

mannet in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or seltfe the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities,
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Exceptional iteins

Items thai are both material and non- reoccurring and whose significance is sufficient to warrant separate disclosure
and identification within the consolidated financial information ave referred to as exceptional items. Items that may
giverise to classification as exceptional include but are note limited to, significant and material reorganisation and
restructuring programmes, re-financing and acquisition costs, Further details of exceptional items can be found in
note 10.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settic that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provigions are measured at the Directors® best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Leases
Definition

A lease is a contract, or a part of a contract, thal conveys the right to use an asset or a physically distinct part of an
asset (“the underlying asset”) for a pericd of time in exchange for consideration, Further, the contract must convey
the right to the Group to control the asset or a physically distinet portion thercof, A contract is deemed to convey the
right to control the underlying asset if, throughout the period of use, the Group has the right to:

+  Obtain substantially all the economic benefits from the use of the underlying assct, and;
¢ Direct the use of the underlying asset (e.g, direct how and [or what purpose the asset is used)

Tiitial recognition and measurement

The Group initially recognises a lease liability for the obligation to make lease payments and a right-of-use asset for
the right to use the underiying asset for the lease term.

The lease liability Is measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease terin, with the
discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the case} this is not
readily determinabie, in which case the Group’s incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used.
The lease payments include fixed payments, purchase options at exercise price (where payment is reasonably
certain}, expecied amount of residuat value guarantees, termination option penaltics (Where payment is considered
reasonably certain) and variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate. In such cases, the initial
measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable element will remain unchanged throughout the lease term.
Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease
incentives received, the Group’s initial direct costs (e.g. commissions) and an estimate of restoration, removal and
dismantling costs.

Subsequent measurément

After the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability by;

(a) Inoreasing the carrying amount o reflect interest on the lease Hability;

(b} Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

() Re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in
substance fixed lease payments or on the oceurrence of other specific events,
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Leases (continued)

Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term is the amount that produces a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the [ease liability. Interest charges are presenled separately as non-operating
costs, included in finance cost, in the income statement, unless the costs are included in the carrying amoun( ol
another asset applying other applicable standards.

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability, are included in operating expenses in
the period in which the event or condition that friggers them arises,

The related right-of-use assel is accounted for using the Cost model in IAS 16 and depreciated and charged in
accordance with the depreciation requiremnents of TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment as disclosed in the
accounting policy for Propetty, plant and equipment. Adjustments are made to the carying valug of the right of use
asset whaore the lease liability is re-imeasured in accordance with the above. Right of use assets are tested for
impairment fn accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of assets as disclosed in the accounting policy in impairment.

Lease modifications

If a lease is modified, the modified contract is evaluated to determine whether it is or contains a lease. 1f a lease
continues Lo exist, the lease madification will result in either a separate lease o a change in the accounting for the
existing lease,

The modification is accounted for as & separate lease il both:

(a) The modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right 10 use one or more underlying assets; and
{b) The consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with (lte stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments {o that stand-alone price to refleet the circumstances of the particular
contract,

If both of these conditions are met, the lease modification results in two separate leases, the unmodtfied original
lease and a separate lease. The Group then accounts for these in line sith the accounting policy for new leases.

[f either of the conditions are not met, the modified lease is not accounted for as a separate tease and the
consideration is allocated to the contract and the lease liability is re~-measured using the lease term of the modified
lease and the discount rate as determined at the effective daic of the modification.

For a modification that fully or partially decreases the scope of the lease (e.g. reduces the square footage of leased
space), IFRS 16 requires a lessee to decrease the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect partial or full
termination of the leasc. Any difference between those adjustments is recognised in profit or loss at the effective
date of the modification.

For all other lease modifications which are not accounted for as a separate lease, IFRS 16 requires the lessec to
recognise the amount of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the corvesponding right-of-use
asset without affecting profit or loss.

Short term and low value leases

The Group has made an accounting policy election, by class of underlying asset, not to recognise lease assets and
lease liabilities for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (i.e. short-term leases).

The Group has made an accounting policy election on a lease-by-lease basis, not to recognise lease assets on leases
for which the underlying asset is of low value.

Lease paymients on short tesm and low vaiue leases are accounicd for on a straight line bases over the terni of the
lease or other systematic basis if considered more appropriate. Shott termi and low value lease payments are included
in operating expenses in the income statement.
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Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity, Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other
resourees received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred and
the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis.

Defined contribution pension obligation

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which fixed contributions ave paid into a separate entity and has
ne legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions If the fund does not hold sufficient assels to pay all
entployees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

Financial instruments
Initial recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilitics comprise all assets and liabilities reflected in the statement of financial
position, excluding property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, deferred tax assets, prepayments and deferred
tax liabilities.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial figbilities in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument,

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Financial liabilitics are Initially recognised at fair value,
representing the proceeds received net of premiums, discounts and fransaction costs that arve direcily aftributable to
the financial lability.

Purchases or sales of a {inancial assels under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time
frame established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned are defined as a regular way
purchase or saie. All regular way purchases and seles of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as fair
vatue through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) are recognised on the trade date, i.¢, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the financial assets or financial liabilities. All regular way purchases and szles of other financial
agsets and financial liabilitics are recognised on the settlement date, i.e. the date on which the asset or liability is
received from or delivered to the counterparty. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery within the time frame generally established by reguiation or convention in the
marketplace,

Subsequent to initial measurement, financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at either amortised cost or
fair value.

Clagsification and measurement

Financial instruments are classified at inception into one of the following categoiies, which then determine the
subsequent measurement methodology: -

Financial assets ate classified into one of the following categories:-
+ financial assets at amortised cost;
+ financial assets at fair vatue through the profit or loss (FVTPL); or
Finattcial lzabilities are classified into one of the following two categories: -
s financial liabilities at amortised cost; or
»  financial liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL).
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Financial instraments (confinued)

The classification and the basis for measurement are subject to the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets, as detalled below:-

Financial avsels af amortised cost

A financial asset is measured al amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

» the assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets fn order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

»  the contractual lerms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solcly
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

{f cither of the above two criteria is nol met, the financial assets ave classified and measured at fair value through the
profit or toss (FVTPL).

If & financial asset meels the amoriised cost criteria, the Group may choose to designate the financial asset al
FVTPL. Such an eleclion is irrevocable and applicable only if the FVTPL classification significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency.

Financtal assets ai falr value through the profir or loss (FVTFPL)
Financial assets not otherwise classified above are classified and measured as FVTPL,

Finaneial labilities at amortised cost
All financial liabililies, other than those classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL, are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss
Finaneial liabilities not measured at amortised cost arve classified and measured at FVTPL. This classification includes

derivative liabilitics.
Derecognition

Financial assels
The Group derecognises a financial asset when;

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are {ransferved; or

+  the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not retain contrel of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised as a gain or loss in the profit or foss.

Any cumulative pain or loss recognised in OCI in respect of equity investment securities designated as FVTOCT is
not recognised in profit or loss on derecognition of such securities. Any interest in transferred financial assets that
qualify for derecognition that is ereated or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
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Finaucial instraments (continued}

The Group enters info transactions whereby it transfors assets recognised on its statement of financial position, but
retaing either all or substantially all of risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them, In such cases,
the transferred assets are not derecognised.

When the Group derccognises transferred financial assets in their entirety, but has continuing involvernent in them
then the entity should disclose for each type of continuing involvement at the reporting date:

(a) The carrying amount of the assets and liabilitics that are recognised in the entity’s statement of
financial position and represent the entity’s continuing involvement in the derecognised financial
assets, and the line itemns in which those assets and liabilities are recognised.

(b) "The fair value of the assels and liabilities that represent the entiy’s continuing involvement in the
derecognised {inancial assets;

(c) The amount that best represents the eniity’s maximum exposure to loss from its continuing
involvement in the derecognised financial asscts, and how the maximum exposure to loss is
determined

() The undiscounted cash cutflowws that would or may be required to repurchase the derecognised

financial assets or other amounts payable to the transferee for the transferred assels

Financial liabilities
The Group derccognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire.

Impairment of financial assets
Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (HCL) on financial instruments that are not
measured at FVTPL, namely trade and other receivables,

Provisions for credit-impaivment ave vecognised in the statement of income and are reflected in accumulated
provision balances against each relevant financial instruments balance,

Evidence that the financial asset is credit-impaired include the following;

» Significant financial difficulties of the borrower or issuer;

« A breach of contract such as default or past due event;

» The restructuring of the loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
atherwise;

» Itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankrupicy or other financial reorpanisation; or

« lhere is other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issuers in the Group, or ¢conoinic condilions that carrelate with defaults in the Group.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplitied approach, which requires expected lifetime losses fo be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables,

Trade receivables are niof subject to materfal or sipgnificant credit losses. Credit risk is not considered to be significant
given that aver 90% of revenue is derived from publicly funded entities.
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Financial instruments (confinned)

Financial inshruments — Risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks in the form of credit, interest and liquidity risks which arise in the normal
course of business. The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed to are noted below, for further detail on these
financial risks please see note 27,

The principal financlal instruments used by the Group, from which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:

»  Trade reccivables
s Cash deposits
*  Senior and revolving credil facilities conlaining a variable element linked to Sterling Overnight Index

Average

Capital Management

The Group's objective when managing its capital is to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern whilst maximising returns for stakeholders through the optimisation of debl and equity please see note
27 for the Group’s capital structure.
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3,  Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounis of certain financial assets, liabilities, income and expenses,

The use of estimates and assumpticns is principally Iimited to the determination of provisions for impairment and
the valuation of financial instruments as explained in more deiail below:

Provisions for impairment

In determining impairment of financial assets, judgement is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows as well as an assessment of whether the credit risk on the financicl asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and incorporation of forward-looking information in the measurement of ECI..

Fair vatue of financial assets and liabilities

Where the fair value of financial assets and liabilities cannot be derived from active markets, thoy are determined
using a variety of valuation lechniques that include the use of mathematical models. The input to these models is
derived from observable markels where available, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
determining assumptions used in the models. Changes in assumptions used in the models could affect the reported
fair value of financial assets and liabilities.

(roing Concern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group®s ligquidity requirements based on a range of scenatios to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operational and financial needs. Thesc forecasts are underpinned by detaited and embedded
forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibilily over both the near term and long term liquidity
requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors decision making on all key finencial matters. The Directors
consider both short term and long term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling three month daily liquidity
forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasting processes, and longer term 3 year long range plans
for the Group. Each of these prajects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

There are necessary estimates and judgements in the divectors’ assessment of going concern these are considered in
detail in the strategic report.

In assessing the potential impact of a range of risk factors on the business the Directors have considered the likely
iripact on the Group of a range of risks specific to the relevant business sector, as well as the compound impact of
risk factors in the broader macro envircnment that have evolved since the balance sheet date.

In particular, a seveze but plausible downside scenario is considered by the Directors in arder to assess the likely
impact of multiple different adverse factors impacting the Group simultaneously, giving rise to a material adverse
impact on the Group’s profitability and liquidity during the going concern period. Specificaily, the severe but
plausible downside scenario assumes:

¢ Reduction in occupancy levels from base forecasts of an aggregate of approximately 2% for the going
concern period.

+  Cost inflation:

o Wage inflation - additional site-wide wage inflation of 1.0% beyond the Group’s planned wage
increases (which already reflect announced National Living Wage, Teacher’s Pay Scale, and
other internal increases}

o Non-Wage inflation - additional 1.0% cost inflation assumed beyond the Group’s base case.
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Crltical accounrting judgements and key sonrces of estimation (centinued)

* Fee Inflation — over and above the cost impacts the scenaric considers a material shorifall in the
proportion of fee increases that can be successtully achieved.

+  Interest rate increases — assumes a marked and sustained increase in inferest rates, ant therefore the cash
{flows required to scrvice the Group’s debt. The scenario factors in Bank of England Base rates exceeding
5% by May 2023 and holding at this level for the remaining going concern period,

We do not consider that COVID-19 will have s material impact on the cashflows of the Group in the going concern
period.

The revenue and cost impact of such a scenario would have a major negative impact on the Group’s profitability for
the going concern period. With operating profit being adversely impacted by approximately 30% in the period.
Furthermore, in adopting a prudent approach, the Directors have considered this scenario before relevant mitigating
actions thaf the business could implement to limit the adverse impact, Before the inclusion of such mitigations the
Group continues to forecast sufficient liquidity and financial covenant headroom.

Business Combinations

The Group undertook three business combinations during the petiod (note 17). In accordance with IFRS, the
purchase method of accounting has been used. The Dircctors determine and allocate the purchase price of acquired
businesses at the date of the business combination, The purchase method requires significant estimates and
judgments,

While Directors use their best estimates and assumptions as part of the purchase price allocation process to
accurately value assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition, estimates and assumptions are
inherently uncertain and subject to refinement, Examples of critical estinates in valuing certain assets we have
acquired include;

+  future expected cashflows arising from assets and liabilities,
+  the fair valuc of intangibie and tangible assets, and
» discount rates,

Useful Economie life of intangible assets

The Directors have determined the useful economic life of certain intangible assets acquired as part of business
combination. The amortisation periods are based on expected customer churn rates and, where relevant, the length of

fixed-term cusfomer contracts.

Right of use assets and liabilities
The Group lesses a number of properlies in the jurisdictions in which it operates, recognised in accordance with
TIFRS16 (note 13).

In calculating the asset/liability attached to several of the lease agreements the Group has required use of an
Incrementat Borrowing Rate (“1BR”). The IBR has considered the tisk-free rate atiributable to the currency, location
and lease {erm of each property, adjusted to reflect the interest rates the Group would be able to achieve based upon
its existing financing arrangemenls.
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Critieal aceounting judgements and key sources of estimation (continued)

The Directors have applied judgement lo detertmine the lease term for contracts that include a renewal or break
option. Extension options and break clauses are inciuded in a numbey of the Group’s lease agreements to maximise
the flexibility in managing operational assets. In determining the lcase term, the Directors have considered all facts,
circumstances and the exercise dates of such clauses. Extension options and break clauses are oply reflected in the
loase term if there is reasonably certainty they will be exercised.

Impairment of goodwill and intangibie fixed assets

The Dircctors must assess whether intangible assets have been impaired during the period. Factors laken into
consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected future financial performance
of the asset and where it is a component of & larger cash generating unit, the viabifity, expected future performance
af that unit using a discounted cashflow model as at the period end and the assessed fair value of cach cash
generaling unit. The key estimates and assumptions that feature in the impairment test is the selection of pre-tax
discount rate relative to the specific risks of the cash-gencrating unit and the preparation of pre-tax cash fiows using
director approved forecasts with growth rates that represent the Directors® best estimates. (note 15)
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4, Revenue

The analysis of the Group’s revenue for the period is as follows:

2022
£m
Turnover 178.6
Other revenue 0.6
o 1783
The anatysis of the revenue by geographic region is as follows:
2022
£m
UK based divisions 176.5
Middle East based divisions 20
] 179,2
5.  Staff costs
The aggregate payroll costs {including directors’ remuneration) were as follows:
2022
£m
Wages and salaries g1.4
Social security costs 8.0
Pension costs, defined contribution scheme 4.5
103.9

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including the Directors) during the period, analysed by

calegory was as follows:

Site and operational
Administration and suppor}

2022
No.
2,987
174
3,161
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6. Qnpevating loss

Arrived at after charging/(crediting)
2022
£m
Depreciation expense 8.7
Depreciation on right of use assets 8.5
Amortisation expense 5.8
Expense on shogt term leages 0.9

7. Auditers’ remuaneration

Audit fees of £0.5m were incurred by the Group during the period, all fees relate to the audit of the Group. There
were no fees incuved related to non-audit services.

8. Other gains and losses

The Group’s other gains or fosses for the period are as follows:

2022
£m
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 0.3
9, Finance income and costs
2022
£m
Finance income
Interest on bank deposits 0.1
0.1
Finance costs
Interest on external borrowings 12.0
[nterest on lease liabilities 108
21.8
Net finance costs 217
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10. Lxceptional items

2022

£

Acquisition costs relatee to business combinations 5.8
Aspris formation and reorganisation costs 1.3
Other transaction costs and charitable donatiens o 0.7
7.8

Acquisition costs on business combinations relate to the acquisition of Aspris Children's Services Limited (£2.6m})
from the Priory Group, the acquisition of 8C Topee Limited (£3.1m), and the acquisition of Aspris (Arden) Limited
(£0.1m),

Aspris formation and reorganisation costs relate to other expenses arising on the formation of the Aspris business as
standalone from the Priory Group and include marketing-related expenses associated with the new Aspris brand.

Reorganisation costs primarily relate te the revision to redundancy costs associated with exit of certain customer
confracts and the impiementation of revised management organisational structures in the Group,

Other transaction costs relate to the Group's assessment, and cxecution, of other corporate and property related
transactions.

The Group elected 1o make a one-ofY contribution to UNICEF's Ukraine appeal during the period.

11, Taxation

Tax recognised in the income statement

2022
Current tax im
Current tax on taxable income for the period 1.3
Deferred tax (note 26)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences {18y
Tax eredited in the period 03)

The reasons for the difference between the actual tax charge for the year and the standard rate of corporation tax
applied to the losses for the year are as follows:-

2022

£m

Loss for the year (27.4}
Tax using the company's tax rate 19% (5.2
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 53
Tax rate changes (0.4}
Total tax credited in the period (0.3)
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Taxation (continuned)

Aspris Holdeo Timited

As a result of the Finance Bill 2021 the rates of income tax are expected to increase from 9% to 25% for the period

beginning April 2023,

Tax liabilities are recognised when, despite the Group's belicf that its tax return positfons are supportable, the

Directors believe it is more likely than nof that a taxation authority would accept its filing position.

The Diirectors believe that its acernals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open audit years based on its assessment
of many factors including past expetience and interpretations ol 1ax law,

No material uncertain tax positions exist as at 31 August 2022. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions
and may involve a series of complex judgements about future events. To the extent that the final tax otitcome of
these matters is different than the determination is made,

12. Property plant and equipment

Group
Furniture, Properties
Land and fittings and Maotor under
hulidings equipment vehicles  consfroction ‘Total
£m £m £m £m £Em
Cost or valuation
Additions 23 6.5 0.t 32 12.1
Acquired through business
combinations 122.4 29.6 0.6 33 1559
Disposals (1.0) (0.5) (0.2) (.7
Transfers 0.5 0.3 N - 0.9 . -
At 31 August 2022 124.3 - 359 0.7 54 166.3
Depreciation
Charge for the period 1.9 6.7 0.1 - 8.7
Eliminated on disposal (0.2) 0.3 - - 8.5
At 31 Augnst 2022 1.7 6.4 0.1 - 8.2
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2022 122.6 290.5 0.6 54 158.1

Under the terms of the Group’s external borrowings there is a flxed charge, in favour of the external lenders, over all
property acquired for a consideration of over £0.75m. Please refer to note 22 for further information on the Group’s

external borrowings.

532



Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

13. Right of use asscts and liabtlities

(continued)

Aspris Holdco Limited

Group
Assets

Property  Motor vehicles Total

£m £m £m

Cost or valuation
Acquired through business 150.8 24 153.2
combinations
Additions 3.0 0.5 3.5
Maodifications 8.3 - 8.3
Disposals 0.1) __{on {02
At 31 August 2022 162.0 2.8 164.8
Depreclation
Charge for the petiod 7.3 12 8.5
Eliminated on disposal - (0.1} {0.1)
At 31 Augusi 2022 7.3 1.1 84
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2022 1547 1.7 156.4
Liabilities

Property  Motor vehicles Total

£m £m im

Acquired through business combinations 151.0 2.4 1534
Additions 3.0 0.5 3.5
Madifications 8.3 - 3.3
Disposals - - -
Interest 10.2 0.3 10.5
Lease payments {(14.00 (1.3) {15.3)
Foreigh Exchange movements 0.1 - 0.1
At 31 August 2022 158.6 1.9 160.5
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Right of usc assets and liabilities (continued)
Nature of keasing activities

The Group leases a number of properiies in the jurisdictions in which it operates, Some of these leases provide for
payments to increase each year by inflation or index rate movements. The Group has options 1o purchase or cxtend
the leases of certain properties. As the exercising of such options is not deomed to be reasonably certain, such
renewal options are not taken into account when determining the right of use assets and labilities. Leases of vehicles
comprise only fixed payments over the lease term.

Lease liabilities are duc as follows:

Maturity analysis EATY
Year 1 i5.5
Year2 15.1
Year 3 14.3
Year 4 13,9
Year$ 13.7
Onwards 2313
3038
Less: unearned Interest (143.3)
160.5

Analysed as:

MNon-Current 155.4
Cugrent 5.1
160.5

Amounts recognised in profit and loss

An amount of £0.9a1 has been recognised in profit and loss in respect of property leases that sxpired and were not
renewed, and for rolling lease agreements. Cash payments in respect of these leases amouuted to £0.9m.

At 31 August 2022, the Group had no commitments under these agreements in excess of a two-month notice period.
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14, Intangihle assets
Group
Contractual
Goodwill customer
(Note 15) relationships Tatal
ifm £m £m
Cost or valuation
Acquired through business combinations 69.3 98.8 168.1
At 31 August 2022 69.3 98.8 168.1
Amortisation
Amortisation charge - 50 5.0
Impairment {note 15) 19.7 - 18.7
At 31 August 2022 15.7 5.0 247
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2022 49.6 93.8 143.4

All Intangible Fixed Assets (“IFAs™) were identified on Purchase Price Allocation: exercises (“PPA™) exercises
carried out on behalf of management by an independent expert, at two points:

1. Acquisition of Priary Education Services Limited (*PESL” — subsequently rename Aspris Children’s
Services Limited) by Aspris Holdeo Limited on 31 August 2021

2. Acguisition of SC Topeo Limited by Aspris Children’s Services Limited on 28 January 2022

3. Acquisition of Hollyblue Healthcare (Arden) Limited, latterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited

All [FAs have been amortised in line with useful economic lives determined by management at each relevant
acquisition date,

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group undertakes an annual review of Goodwill and where other IFAs
where there are indicators of impairtment,
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15. Goodwill and impairment

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired on the purchase of
the subsidiary companies. In accordance with IFRS, this balance is not amortised and is subject to annual impairment
reviews, Goodwill has been allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGUI”) based on Purchase price Allocation
(“PPA™) exercises:

1. Acquisition of Priory Education Services Limited (“PESL” — subsequently renamed Aspris Children’s
Services I.imited) by Aspris Holdco Limited on 31 Aupust 2021

2. Acquisition of SC Topeo Limited by Aspris Children’s Sevvices Limited on 28 January 2022

3. Acquisition of Hollyblue Healthcare (Arden) Limited, latterly renamed Aspris (Avden) Limited

ACSL Sand-  Arden Total

Group castle
Group
£m £m £m £m
Goodwill recognised during the period 21.0 47.7 0.6 69.3
Impairnent recognised during the period - 19.7) - {197
Gaodwill 21.0 28.0 0.6 49.6

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group undertakes an annual review of Goodwill.

In order to determine if there has been any impairment of Goodwill, management prepared calculations of the
recoverable amount for cach CGUJ. For both ACSL Group and the Sandcastle Care Group the recoverable valuc is
determined by the forecast present value of futere cash flows of the CGU based on 5-year projections ending in a
terminal growth rate assumption. Forecasts are based on the assumptions set out below:

Key Assumptions ACSL Group Sandcastle Care
Discount Rate 11.0% 10.3%
Terminal Growth Rate 2.0% 1.0%
Operating Margin 10.3% 20.6%

ACSL Group

Since the date of acquisition, the ACSL Group has maintained performance in line with the budgeted targets set for
the business. Operational challenges, particularly regarding constraints on the availability of slaff have been
effectively managed, without a material adverse impact on ACSL’s profifability for the period,

Forecast for FY23 is based on budget prepared by managcment and approved by the Board, with appropriate
adjustments for trading at 31 August 2022, Operating profit is forecast to increase at 2% CAGR between FY24 and
FY27, Replacement capex to maintain the estate has also been assumed, on par with FY23 budgeted levels.

Regarding the Group’s acquisition of 100% of the share capital of ACSL Croup on 31 August 2021 the Group assessed
the Tair value of identifiable net assets acquired to be £41.2m, compared fo the total consideration of £62.2m, giving
rise {0 £21.0m intangible goodwill being recognised by the Group. As at 31 August 2022 Management assessed the
recoverable amount for ACSL Group to be £241.1m, £19.5m preater than the carrying value, and thus no impairment
to the Goodwill atrising on acquisition is recognised in the period.
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Goodwill and impairment (continued)

Sandeastle Care Group

Since the date of acquisition, the Sundcastic Carc business has maintained a high quality rating performance of over
90% post-acquisition, bul the business has been impacted by operational challenges that have reduced both iis
available capacity and utilisation. Whilst aspects of these challenges are not thought {o be permancnt, they have
imipacted the overall assessment of the present vafue of future cashflows from the business. These challenges inciude
staffing constraints that have led 10 reduced total occupancy and an adverse impact on operating margins compared to
the burdgeted targets for the business.

Forecast for FY23 is based on the budget prepared by manegement and approved by the Board, with appropriate
adjustments for trading at 31 August 2022, Operating profit is forecast to increase at 1% CAGR between FY24 and
FY27. Replacement capex 10 maintain the eslale has also been assumed, on par with FY23 budgeted levels.

Regarding the Group’s acquisition of 100% of the share capital of SC TopCo Limited on 28 January 2022 the Group
asscssed the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired to be £14.0m, compared to the total consideration of £61.7m,
giving rise to £47.7m intangible goadwill being recoghised by the Group,

Mznagement assessed the recoverable amount for Sandesstle Care Group to be £77.6m, £19.7m lower than the
carrying value of the CGU on a comparable basis at balance sheet date, and as such have impaired the goodwill
assoclated with the CGU by the shortfall in eairying value versus the recoverable amount.

Impairment sensitivities for ACSL Group and Sandcastie Care Group

I any one of the following assumptions were amended by 1 perceniage point, the impact on the impairment value
would be as follows:

Sensitivities Aspris Sandeastle Care
Discount Rate (1% increase) Reduction to cartying value | Reduction to carrying value
from £241.1m to £221.2m from £77.6m fo £71.6m
Terminal Growth Rate {1% reduction) Reduction to carrying value | Reduction to carrying value
from £241.1m to £220.7m from £77.6m to £71.5m
Operating Margin (1% reduction beyond FY27) Reduction to carrying value | Reduction to carrying value
from £241.1m 10 £223.0m from £77.6m to £74.8m

Aspris (Arden) Limited

The assets held by Aspris (Arden) Limited consist of land and buildings, these were af fair value on acquisition,
there are no subsequent indicators of impairment to the assets of Aspris (Arden) Limited, Since the acquisition of
Arden the business has been performing in line with expeclations, and thus no impairment to the Goodwill arising
ol acquisition is required in the period.
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16. Investments - Groap Subsidiaries

(continued)

Details of the group subsidiaries as at 31 Aupust 2022 are as follows:

Nante of subsidiavy

Aspris Mideo Limited
Aspris Bideo Limited

Aspris Children’s Services Limited

Coxlease School Limited
Castlecare Group Limited

Progress Care and Education Limited

Speciality Care Limited
Strathmore College Limited
Aspris {Thetford 1) Limited

Aspris New Education Services Limnited

Castlecare Holdings limited
Quantum Care UK Limited

Principal activity

Holding company
Holding company
Specialist education services
Non trading

Non trading
Children’s homes
Holding company
Care delivery
Non irading
Education

Non trading

Children’s care homes

Speciality Carg (Rest Homes) Limtited  Care delivery
Speciality Care (Medicare) Limited

Specialised Courses Offering Purposeful Cave delivery

Holding company

Education Limited

Aspris (Thetford 2) Limited
Dunhall Property Limited
Castle Homes Care Limited
Castlecare Cymru Limited
Castle Homes Limited
Rothcare Estates Limited
Castlecare Education Limited

Non trading

Non trading
Children’s care homes
Children’s care homes
Children’s care hoines
Property company

Speocialist education services
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Registered office

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Usited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Proportion of
ownership
interest and
voting righis

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
1G0%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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Investments (continued)

Thetford Trustee LLP

Aspris (Troup House) Limited *
Aspire Scolland Holdings Limited®
Aspire Scetland Limited*

Galaxy I Limited*

Galaxy UK Leisure Limited*

SC Topeo Limited**

SC Bideo Limited**

Nalabra Propertics Limited*#*
Sandcastle Care Holdings Limited**
Sandcastle Care Limited**
Portixel UK Limited**

Aspris (Arden) Limited

Priory Healthcare LLC***

Unless stated otherwise the registered address of cach subsidiary is: The Forge, Church Street West, Woking,

Surrey, England, GU21 6HT

¥Company registered address is: 38-40 Mansion house Road, Glasgow, Gd1 3DW

(continued)

Non trading
Education

Holding company

Chitdren’s care and education
Children’s care and cducation

Children’s care and education

Holding company
Holding company
Property company
Holding company

Children’s care homes

Property company
Property company
Healthcare

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Uniled Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
UAE

**Company registered address is: 49 Whitegate Drive, Blackpool, Lancashire, England, FY3 9DG
#++Aspris Group conirols Priory Healtheare LLC through a combination of contractval agreements wnd the ability to direct the financial and

operational managemenl of 1be entity

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
0%

Aspris Holdco Limited has given statutory guarantees against all the outstanding labilities of all wholly owned
subsidiaries as at 31 August 2022, This thereby allowed dormant subsidiaries to be exempt from the requirement to
prepare and file annual accounts under section 394A or the Companies Act, and non-dormant subsidiaries to be

exempt from the annual audit requirement under Secticn 479A of the Companies Act, for the period ended 31

August 2022,

The Group has control of a 60% interest in Saudi Healthcare LLC (“SHc™), an entity registered in KSA, which

operates a Wellbeing Centre in Riyadh. The operation, although important to management’s future plans and

siratepy in the reglon, is not seen as malerial in the context of these Financiai Statements.

During the period the Group loaned £1.1m to SHe, in addition to the £0.1m interest in share capital and £0.3m.
acquired on business combination. SHe did not trade during the period and incurred losses of £0.9m, the Group’s

share of these losses £0.5m have been recognised in operaling costs,

Investments - Company

Investments made during period - Cost

Aspris Mideo Limifed
At 31 August 2022

Group

2022
£m

115.1

119.1
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17. Business combinations

Acquisition of subsidiary — Aspris Children’s Services Limited and subsidiaries

On 31 August 2021, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Priory Education Services Limited
(latterty named Aspris Children’s Services Limited), obtaining control. The principal activity of Aspris Children’s
Services Limited (“ACSL”)} is provision of specialist schools, colleges, children’s homes and fostering. ACSL was
acquired by Aspris Bidco Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Aspris Holdco Limited. This transaction was
unclerlaken to purchase the children’s services and Middle East operations of the Priory Group, of which ACSL and

its subsidiaries were previously members of.

The 100% sharcholding in ACSI. was obtained for cash consideration of £62.2m.

As part of the acquisition, foans totalling £90.1m between ACSI. and its subsidiaries, and Priory Group were settled.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed arc as sct out in the

tablc below:

£m Book  Fair Value Fair value
Value adjustments
Assets and linbilities acquired
Property, plant and equipment 134.2 5.0 139.2
Right of use assets 153.2 0.2} 153.0
Intangible asseis 272 152 42.4
Trade and other receivables 13.7 0.1 13.8
Cash and cash equivalent 1.9 - 1.9
Lease ligbilitics (153.2) - (153.2)
Trade and other payables (134.0) - (134.0)
Provisions 0.8) - (0.8}
Deferred tax liabilities (3.8) (17.3) (21.1)
Total identifiable assets 184 2.8 41.2
Goodwill - - 21.0
Total consideration 62.2
Satisfied by:
Cash 62.2
Cash flow analysis:
Cash consideration 62.2
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (1.9
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 60.3
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Business combinations (continued)

The fair value of the financial assels includes receivables with a fair value of £12.2m and a gross contractual value
of £12.6m. The best estimate at acquisilion date of the contractual cash flows not {o be coliected are £0.4m.

The goodwill of £21m arising front the acquisition consists of the presence of certain infangible assets, which do not
qualify for separate recognition, such as;

+  Assembled workforce of ACSL, including both the UK and Middle East workforce

s Agpris’ ability to extend the existing relationships acquired with Local Authorities beyond the useful
economic life anticipated at initial acquisition.

*  Development of new relationships in the Middle East

Norne of {he goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes,
Acquisition related costs of £2.5m arose as a result of the transaction.
Acquisition of subsidiary - SC Topco Lintited and subsidiartes

On 28 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of SC Topco Limited (*Sandcastle Care’),
obtaining control. The principal activity of Sandcastle Care is the provision of therapeutic care homes for chiidren,
Sandcastle Care was acquired to achieve the creation of a consolidated business in the Waterland group that is
focused on providing children’s service. The transaction provides Aspris with greater coverage in the Northwest of
England, where Sandcastle Cares’ properties are primarily located.

61




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

(continued}

Business combinations {continned)

The amounts recognised In respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilitics assumed are as sct out in the

table below:

£m Baolk Fair value TFair
Value adjustments value
Assets and liabilities aequired
Property, plant and equipment 24.4 (13.2) 11.2
Right of use assets 0.2 - 0.2
ntangible assets 12.0 4.4 56.4
Trade and other receivables 3.8 - 3.8
Cash and cash gquivalent 3.6 - 3.6
Lease liabilities {0.2) - (0.2)
Trade and other payables (2.5} - (2.3)
Income tax liability (1.1) - (L)
Loans and boreowings {41.3) - (41.3)
Detferred tax linbiitics {02 {15.3) (16.1)
Total identifiable assets WW 153 T 10
Goodwill o - - E’T
Total consideration 61.7
Satisfied by:
Cash 61.7
Cash flow analysis:
Cash consideration 61.7
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (3.6}
58.1

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

The fair value of the financial assets includes receivables with a fair value of £3.4m and a gross contractual vaiue of

£3.4m.

The goodwili of £47.7m arising from the acquisition consists of the presence of certain intangible asseis, which do

not qualify for separate recognition, such as;

+  Assembled workforce of Sandeastie Care.

s Sandeastle Cara’s ability to extend the existing velationships acquived with Local Authorities beyond the

useful economic life anticipated at initial acquisition,

Naone of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for corporation tax purpoeses.

Acquisition related costs of £3.1m arose as a result of the transaclion.
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Business combinations (continued}
Acquisition of subsidiary — Aspris (Arden) Limited

On 31 March 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Hollybluc Iealthcare (Arden) Limited,
latterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited on obtaining control. Its principal activity is a property lessor. The
purchase of Hollybluc Healthcare {Arden) Limited enabled the acquisition of the frechold inlerests in properties
previousiy leased to the Group. This included properties that had previously formed part of the Priory Group’s
residential adult care division. Subsequent to the purchase of Hollyblue (Arden) Limited such properties weyre
disposed of by the Aspris Group to the Priory Group at fair value.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the
table below:

£ Book Value NIt value
Assets and liabilities acquired

Property, plant and equipment 5.5 - 55
Trade and other payables (0.1} - (G.1)
Income tax liability (0.1} - (0.1}
Deferred tax liabilities - (0.6) (0.6)
Total identifiable assets 53 {0.6) 4.7
Goodwill - - - 0.6
Total consideration 53
Satisfied by:

Cash 53
Cash flow analysis:

Cash consideration 53
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired -
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 5.3

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for corporation tax purposes.

Acquisition related costs of £0.1m arose as a result of the transaction.
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Impuct of the acquirees on amounts reported in the statement of comprehensive income

The amounis of revenue and profit or loss of the acquirees since acquisition date included in the consolidated
statement of income for the reporting period is as follows:

Aspris  Sandeastle  Arden

£m £m £m

Revenue 162.7 16.5 0.0

Operaling cost 1409y (155 0.3

Operating profit before impairment and other [asses and exceptional 218 19 03
costs

Impairment and other losses and exceptional costs (8.0 (19.8) 0.0

_DOperating profif ) 13.8 (18.8) 0.3

The revenue and profit or loss of the combined entity for the surrent reporting period as through the acquisition date
for 21l business combinations that occurred during the year had been at the beginning of the 12 month trading period
starting 1 September 2021, Is as follows:

£m
Revenue 191.0
Operating cost (717}
Operating profit before impairment and other losses and exceptional 19.3
cOsis
Impairment and other losses and oxceptional costs (28.3)
Operating profit (9.0)
18. Trade and other receivables
Group Company
31 August 3t August
20622 2022
Current £m £m
Trade reccivables 18.7 -
Provision for impairment of trade receivables o ey -
Net trade recaivables 196 -
Accrued income 04 -
Prepayments 17 -
Loans receivable from joint venture (note 28) 1.0 -
Other receivables 1.8 02
24.5 02

All cirent receivables ave due within | year of balance sheet date. None of these are subject io material or significant
credit fosses. Credit risk is not considered to be significant given that over 90% of revenue is derived from pubiicly
funded entities.

Amounts recetvable from joint venture are not subject to interest and are repayable on demand.
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15, Cash and cash equivalents
Group  Company
2022 2022
£ £m
Cash at bank _ ) __ 181 0.7

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and at bank, Cash at bank is held with bauks or financial
institution counterparties which are investment grade rated. Management do not expecl any losses from non-
performance of counterparties.

26, Deferred income

Group

2022

£m

Acquired through business combination 28.9
Deferred during the year 28.8

Recognised during the year ] {28.9)
28.8

Peferred income is in respect of services invoiced in advance of delivery and is released as services are delivered.

21, Issued capifal and reserves

Aliotted, called up and fully paid shares

2022 2022

Na. £000

A Ordinary shares of £1 each 82,851,341 82,851
B Ordinary shares of £] each 1,782,603 1,783
C Ordinary shares of £] each 1,232,266 12
85,866,210 84,640
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Essued capital and reserves (continued)
New shares aliotfed

Class No. Consideration
£000
A Ordinary shares of £1 each’ 82,851,341 116,861
B Ordinary shares of £1 each? 1,782,603 2,223
C Ordinary shares of £1 each? 1232266 36
85,866,210 119,120

! A Ordinary shares of £1 each have full voting and payments of dividend rights, right to distributions alongside B Ordinary sharehwolders in
priarity to C Ordinary shareholder, subject to a threshold. Rights to distributions ence the threshold has been surpassed alongside the B Ordinary
shareholders and C Ordinacy sharchaolders.

21 Ordinary shares of £1 each have full voting and payments of dividend ights, right to distributions alenpside A Grdinary sharcholders in
priority 1o C Ordinary shareholder, subject to a threshold. Rights lo distribwtions once the threshold has been surpassed alongside the A Ordinary
shareholders and C Qrdinary shareholders.

*C Ordinary shares of £1 each have no voting rights. C Ordinary shares have rights to dividends and distributions once the threshold has been
surpassed alengside the A and B Ordinary shareholders.

22. Leans and borrowings

Group

2022

Non-currenf loans and borrewings £
Hxternal loans 165.0
Capilalised debt fees {34}
External borrowings 159.6

The Group entered into a senior term and revolving facility agreement on 27 August 2021 to facilitate the
acquisition of Sandcastle Care and future acquisitions. As at the end of the period the dvawn senfor facilities of
£165.0m are secured over the Group’s assets and carry interest at a variable margin over the applicable SONIA rate.
The loans are repayable 7 years from the date of complietion of the acquisition of ACSL.

External borrowings are recognised at fair value net of transaction costs that are directly attributable to the credit
facilities. At the balance sheet date this was £5.4m.

The Group’s Loan facilities are subject to a single financial covenaat test which is assessed quarterly, This covenant
assesses the fotal gross Leverage of the Group as a ratio to proforma LTM EBITDA of the consolidated group at
each quarterly test date, At the balance sheet date the covenant threshold was 7.4x, as at 31 August 2022 the ratio
level was materially betow this threshold at a level of 4.9x. This equates to £11.6m of headroom expressed in terms
of proforma [LTM EBITDA.

As at 31 August 2022 the Group had letters of credit in place amounting to £2 3m. This amount is ringfenced within
the Group’s total revelving credit facility of £22m for this purpese, with no other amounts drawn under this facility
as at the balance sheet date. These letiers issued by the Group’s principal bankers to the Group’s insurers, en
employee pension scheme, and to suppoit eredit granted under supplier contracts.
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23. Provisions
Legal
provision
2022
£m
Acquired through business combination 6.8
Charged in income statement 0.4
Used during year .02
1.0
24, Trade and other payables
Group  Company
2022 2022
£m m
Trade payables 3.1 -
Accrued expenses 1.7 -
Amounts due to related partics - 0.9
Social security and other taxes 2.3 -
(her payables 4.4 -
21.5 0.9

Other payables consist of credit balances, funds held on behalf of ADEK for the operation and investment of the
school operated by the Group and savings held on behalf of young persons.

25, Pension

The Group cperates defined contribution pension schenies. The pension cost charge for the period represenits
conliributions payable by the Group ta the scheme and amounted to £4.5m

26. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated in fidl on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 19%. The
increase in corporation tax to 25% is expected 1o be effective from April 2023, This new rate will be applied to
defered tax balances which are expested to reverse as at 1 September 2022,

Deferred lax assets have been recognised in respect of afl temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets
where the Direclors believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

The movemenis in deferred tax asseis and liabilities {prior to the offselting of balances within the same jurisdiction
as permitted by 1AS 12) during the period are shown below,
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Deferred tax (continued)

Detaiis of the deferred tax liability, amounts recognised in the profit or loss and amounts recognised in other
comprehensive income are as follows:

Recognised in Recognised in Recognised in Total
business income other 31 August
combinations comprehensive 2022

(Note 17) income
Intangible asset differences 23.8 (1.3) - 2.5
Tangible assel differences 14.0 0.3) ) 7 - 13,7
37.8 (1.6) - 36.2

Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of capital tax losses carried forward In the UK totalling £2.4m
as there is insufficient evidence as to their recoverability.

27. Financial instruments

Tinancizal assets and liabilitics

Financial assets and financial liabilities comprise all assets and habilities reflected in the statement of financial
position, excluding property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, deferred tax assets, prepayments and deferred
tax liabilities,

Group Company
2022 2022
Tinancial assets £ £m
Investments in subsidiaties - 119.1
Trade and othet receivables 228 0.2
Cash and cash equivalent 18.1 0.7
40,9 120.0
Financial labilities

Trade and other payables 21.5 0.9

Incomme tax liability 0.9
Deferred income 28.8 -
Lease liabilities 160.5 -
Lozns and borrowings 159.6 -
Provisions Lo -
372.3 0.9

Thete is no difference between the carrying value of financial instruments and thelr fair value, The Group has no
finuncial instrurnents that are measured at fair value.

The Group does not require collateral in respect of financial assets.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial risk management

The Group ic exposed to financial risks in the form of credit, interest and liquidity risks which avise in the normal
course of business, The primary financijal risks that the Group is exposed to are defailed below:

Credit risk - Cash deposits and Trade receivables
Finaneial instruments which potentially expose the Group to credit risk consist primarily of cash and trade receivables.

Cash is only deposited with major financial institutions that satisfy certain credit criteria. Credit risk in relation to
trade receivables is not considered to be significant given that the vast mygjorily of revenuve is derived from publicly
funded education and care services. The Group provides credit to customers in the normal course of business and the
balance sheet is net of allowances of £0.1m for doubtful receivables. The Group measures those allowances at an
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses using both quantitative and gualitative information and analysis
based on the Group's historical experlence and forward-looking information.

Allowances againsi doubtfui debls are recognised against trade receivables based on estimated irrecoverable amounts,
determined by reference to pasi experience of the counterparfy. The majority of the Group’s allowance for doubtful
debls relates Lo specific irade receivables that are not considered to be recoverable, and management only considers it
appropriate fo create a collective provision based on the age of the trade receivable in respect of certain types of trade
receivables,

The aging of trade receivables at 31 August is as follows:

£m
Current 49
30-60 days 14.0
60-150 days 0.5
150 days + 0.3
19,7

The Direclors consider that the carrying amount of {rade and other receivables is approximately equal to their fair
value.

Trade receivables at least 60 days past due for which no loss allowance has been made at 31 December is £0.7m.

Furlher to the credit risks described on cash and trade receivables the Group does not have any significant credit risk
exposure to any single counierparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics. The Group defines
counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related entities,

There is no concern over the credit quality of amounts past due but for which no loss allowarnces has been recognised
since the risk is spread over a number of unrelated counterparties which include central and local Government, The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reperting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above and cash held by the Group.

6%




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

Interest vate risk — Senior and Revolving credit facilities containing a vartable element linked to Sterling Overvight
Index Average

The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving external credit facilities. The facilities are
denominated in pounds and arc borrowed with intercst at a variable margin over the applicable SONIA rate, Senior
loans ave repayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facilities ave repayable qn 31 August 2026,

In addition to assessments required by macro-economic events, the Group monitors its near term interest rate exposure
on g monthly basis, and fonger term exposurc on a bi-ananal basis. This inciudes the review of the options available
to it for the hedging of interest vate visk, but currently does not have a hedged component to the intevest burden on its
external debt, In lipht of prevailing market conditions, and the high cost of hedging instruments, the Directors believe
the Group has sufficient capacity to address the risk of interest rate rises.

Based on modelling performed, a 100 basis point shift in SONIA rates would have a £1.65m increase or decrease on
interest payments due on the Group’s external debt. A 350 basis point shift (being the maximum likely change in
interest rates over the year from the period end) would have an impact of £5.8m on interest payments due on the
Ciroup’s external debt,

Liquidity risk

The Group prepares both annual and short-term cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated
projects, Borrowing facilities ave utilised as necessary to finance requiremenis. The Group has sufficient avaitable
bank facifities and cash flows {rom profits to fund current commitments.

The following table shows the contractual cash flow maturities for financial liabilities:

Total  O-1years 2-5years  S+years

Trade and other payables 216 216
Borrowings 165.0 165.0
Lease liabilitics 303.8 15.5 57.0 231.3

Fareign currency rislc

Substantially all of the Group’s operations are in the UK and as such foreign currency risk is not deemed significant.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objective when managing its capital is to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
poing concern whilst maximising retuerns for stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity. The Group’s
capital structure is as follows:

2022
£m
Cash I8.1
Borrowings! (165.0)
Lease lisbilities (160.5)
Equity 92.0
1. Bxcluding ncerued interest and capitalised debt fees S -
Analysis of net debt
Business Cash Other
Combinations fow Interest movement?
£m £m £m £m £m
Cash 5.5 12.6 - - 18.1
Borrowings! 41.3) {123.7) - - (165.0)
Net Debt (excluding (35.8) 11L1) - - (146.9)
Lease liabilities)
Lease liabilities (153.4) 15.3 (10.5) (11.9) (160.5)
Net Debt (193.0} (92.0) (10.5) {11.9) {307.4%

1. Excluding acerued inferest and capitnlised debt fees of £5.4m
2. Relates tp non-cash movements in lease liahilities - see note 13 for details

28, Related parties

Ultimate parent and contrelling party

The Company’s immediate parent is Standbyco 35 B.V

The ultimate parent is Waterland Private Equity Investments B.V

The ullimate controlling party is Waterland Private Equity Investments B.V

Aspris Holdeo Limited is the smallest and largest company for which consolidated financial statenients are prepared
for public use.
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Related parties (continned)

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been ehiminated
on consalidation and are not disclosed in this note.

The Group is owed £1.4m from Saudi Healthcare LLC, a related party as & jofnt venture investment which ia equity
accounted for in these stafements, there is no interest charge, and this balance is repayable on demand. Held against
this receivable is a provision of £0.4m for the Group’s share of the initial losses incurred over the investment amount
made in Saudi Healtheare LUC, The net of the amounts owed of £1.,0m is detailed in note 18,

The Group paid a management charge of £30,000 to WPEF VI Holding Codperatief W.A, a related party through
common centrol,

Prior to the acquisition of Aspris Group (note 17) Priory Education Services Limited (“PESL”) was a part of the Priory
Group. At the time of the transaction Priory Group was a related party. Whilst the Group’s operations were largely
autonomous from those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the recipient of central support services provided to il
by the Priory Group. These services continved under a transitiona] services arrangement agreed at the time of the
Group’s acquisition of PESL. This transitional agtecment provided for back office support, including use of systems
and software, human resources support, estates and aspects of financial reporting assistance. This transitional stage
included the implementation of Aspris’ own standalone systems and support inftastructuie, the process of which was
completed by 30th November 2022, with all services received under this {ransitional arrangement ceased to be
provided from that date.

On 28 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% ol the issued share capital of SC Topco Limited (note 17}, obtaining
contrel. SC Topco Limited was a related party by the nature of common ownership. One of the prineipal purposes of
the acquisition was to achieve the creation of a consolidated business in the Waterland group that is focused on
providing children's service,

During the period an amount of £0.4m was advanced to directors at an interest raie cgual to the HMRC official rate
of interest, on a term concurrent with the period with which the Directors remain shareholders in the Group, Interest
{s paid by the Directors amally and early repayment of any portion of the outstanding balance is permitted at any
time. During the period repayments of £0.2m were made, with the remaining £0.2m outstanding at the peried end
being included in other receivables (note 18)
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Key management personnel

Key management personnel arc those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
conirolling (lie activities of the Group.

2022
£000
Directors® emoluments 1,926
Directors’ post-employment benefits N 8

Total emeluments for the highest paid director were £1,153,000, this included a one-ofl non-recurring reward of
£305,000 relating to the exceptionally high level of corporate transactions and reorganisation activity successfully
completed during the pericd. The value of the Company’s contributions paid to a defined contribution pension
scheme in respect of the highest paid director amounted 1o £4,000.

The number of Directors to whom retirement benefits are accrued under money purchase pension schemes is 2,

29, Events after reporiing date
Acquisition of BHIS Holdings Limited

Following the close of the reperting period, and consistent with the Group strategy of expanding its specialist
education division, the Group completed the acquisition of a specialist education provider in the UK, BHIS
Holdings Limited, on 1 March 2023.

The acquired business, and its wholly owned subsidiaries, provide specialist education for up to approximately 100
primary and secondary schoal aged young people in the East of England.

To support this acquisition, and the Group’s broader growth abjectives, the Group entered into an extension of its
available external debt facilities with its existing Jenders. This new growth facility was agreed and effective fiom §
February 2023, These facilities provide an additional £25m of committed available debt capacity 1o support the
growth projects of the Group.

In addition, as paut of the above acquisition the Group issued additional equity capitat to its shareholders in March
2023, with the above acquisition being funded through a combination of a partial drawdown of the new growth debt
facility and this new equity capital raise.
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